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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a

risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased

to present the annual results of Viva China Holdings
Limited (“Viva China” or the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014,
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BUSINESS

Sports

We believe managing a rich and diversified portfolio of sports resources will
enable us to truly realise the potential commercial values along the sports industry
chain in the PRC in the long run, while operating and promoting sports events will
enhance brand marketing which in turn elevate the potential in the commercial
value of the sports resources. Hence, the Group has been devoted to investing

in different aspects of sports with huge growth potential, such as basketball,
badminton and running.

Since 2013 we have successiully secured commercial rights to the Four-

Level School Basketball Leagues in the PRC, ranging from junior schools and
high schools to colleges and universities, namely, Chinese University Basketball
Association (CUBA), Chinese University Basketball Super League (CUBS), Chinese
High School Basketball League (CHBL) and Chinese Junior School Basketball
League (CJBL). By managing and operating school basketball league series with
the widest coverage among schools in the PRC, and joining efforts with Li Ning
Co in utilising various marketing initiatives and advertising channels to magnify the
impact of the leagues among student communities, the Group has aimed to realise
and further raise the commercial values of the Four-Level School Basketball
Leagues, particularly the long-established CUBA and CUBS, so as to increase
awareness and participation of the younger generation on the most representative
national school basketball leagues. We deem the Four-Level School Basketball
Leagues with enormous potential commercial values, as promoting basketball
activities as a part of the school culture in the PRC may help rooted a sportive
lifestyle among the younger social community.
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The Group participated in coordinating world-class international badminton
tournaments, namely, “Li-Ning BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2014" held in
India and “Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014” held in Denmark during the
reporting period.

Apart from this, the Group also helped coordinating and promoting a series of
charity running events for a sports company in six cities across the PRC, and
succeeded in securing the coordination and commercial development rights of
2015 Li-Ning China 10K Running League” during the reporting period. The
development of running events is booming in the PRC, and there is a significant
surge in the number of both running events and participants in recent years. The
Group trusts that the commercial opportunities in respect of running events will be
steadily increasing. Therefore, the Group will continue its endeavour on participating
in the operation of running events, making itself the pioneer in managing sports
resources in this aspect.

Furthermore, we continued to provide talent management services for commercial
engagements for individual athletes and national teams. The Group has succeeded
in realising the commercial values of our managed sports talents by arranging
them to participate in selected and diversified commercial activities and gaining
public exposure.

Itis the Group's strategy to drive the establishment of an integrated sports
platform by leveraging on the existing resources of its sports business. It is also
my strong belief that promoting nationwide participation in sports is crucial for
maximising the commercial value along the sports industry chain. The Group will
therefore continue its effort to capture and maximise the commercial values of the
sports resources under our management, and encourage social participation in
sporting activities through sports talents management, commercial management
of popular sporting events and competitions, as well as providing sports marketing
and consulting services, and engaging in community development with a sports
theme.
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Community Development

The Group has been dedicating its effort to promoting a sportive and healthy
lifestyle in the community. Echoing the PRC government’s strategy to promote
nationwide physical fitness, the Group actively held discussions with different
prospective contracting parties, including local governments, property
development companies and established financial institutions, and to strike
strategic partnerships in the past year to explore cooperation opportunities on
potential property development projects, including sports community development,
and sports-related commercial opportunities that promote healthier living and
sports awareness in the PRC. The Group will continue to make every endeavour to
pursue development opportunities on sports communities with enormous growth
prospects in the PRC. We trust that the expected expansion of this business
segment will generate revenue and deliver returns to our stakeholders.

On 16 December 2014, the Group participated in the Li Ning Open Offer through
subscription and underwriting. Aligning with our mission in promoting sports in the
community and the long-term expansion strategy of the Group, we believe that our
investment in Li Ning Co will help create synergies and reap benefits for further

development of the Group, and enable us to further expand our scope of business.

Furthermore, the Group continued its production and sale of precast concrete
products and glass-fiber reinforced concrete products through our industrial plants
located in Shenyang. We will develop such business at a measured pace and will
continue to enhance its business model.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

20714 should undoubtedly be marked as a tipping point for the blast-off of the
sports industry in the PRC, followed by a series of revolving guidelines in respect
of the development of the sports industry in the PRC put forth by the State
Council and relevant statutory bodies in the second half of the year. The “Guiding
Opinion on Accelerating the Development of Sports Industry and Promoting Sports
Consumption” (the “Opinion”) announced by the State Council in October 2014
became a comprehensive and crucial guiding framework for further sports industry
reforms. Promoting nationwide physical fitness has now been escalated to a
national strategy, which targets to drive sustainable social and economic growth
for the country. The Opinion set out target of per capita area of sports grounds to
reach 2 square meters and people who regularly participate in physical exercise
to reach 500 million in the PRC, coupled with sports facilities coverage to reach
100% of the population and construction of “15-minute fitness areas” across the
country, ultimately targeting the entire sports industry output to exceed

RMBS trillion by 2025.

PROSPECTS

The announcement of the Opinion followed by the government reforming plans put
forth in the past year unveiled a new page in promoting nationwide physical fitness
in the PRC. An increasing number of public sports services and infrastructure is
expected to be made accessible to all people in achieving the targets set by the
Opinion. We expect that a healthy lifestyle among the citizens in the PRC will be
promoted, which will help facilitating a larger population to participate in public
sports and fostering a sportive environment in the community.

The Group is even more confident about the mid-to-long-term development of
sports parks and sports communities backed by the timely support of the PRC
Government entailed by the favorable guidelines in needs of sports services
and infrastructures across the country. We enjoy competitive edge given by our
existing sports resources and management experiences, as well as synergies
achieved with Li Ning Co. And yet, we are obligated to contribute to the
sustainable development of the sports industry with other industry players, and
join hands with the relevant governmental bodies to cultivate a sportive, healthy
and balanced neighborhood in the PRC. By leveraging on our integrated sports
platform and expertise, we will continue our hard work in identifying sports-related
commercial opportunities, while facilitating collaborative efforts with different
strategic partners in order to foster our community development business.
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"It is the best of times” — we truly believe 2015 and the following decade will
witness a landmark in the sports industry. The sports industry development is
expected to undergo significant progress followed by the implementation of the
state policies. Coping with the strongly favorable government plans, the Group is
well-positioned to tap on the upcoming opportunities when the sports industry
progresses, and capitalise on our sports resources, industry expertise and long-
standing business networks to realise our business strategies in sports and
community development, hence seizing returns to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to our
stakeholders for their unwavering support. My heartfelt thanks also go to our
staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions in gauging potential business
opportunities and creating value for our shareholders in the past year.

Li Ning
Chairman
19 March 2015, Hong Kong
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BUSINESS REVIEW > SPORTS
EBGOErES

TALENT & NATIONAL TEAM MANAGEMENT

The Group currently provides exclusive talent management services for
commercial engagements with renowned individual athletes and the national diving
team in the PRC. During the reporting period, athletes that were under our talent
management included YANG Wei (gymnastics), CHEN Yibing (gymnastics), LIU
Xuan (gymnastics), SUN Yang (swimming) and JIN Jing (fencing). We arranged our
athletic talents to attend popular TV reality shows, TV interview programs, profile
interviews in lifestyle magazines as well as sports charity and marketing events.
These renowned public figures with sportive, professional and healthy image were
well-received by the public. Moreover, we engaged in strategic partnership with
the national badminton team during the past year.

We will continue to search for opportunities to sign up national team of different

fields and renowned athletes in the PRC so as to consolidate and enrich our
sports portfolio.
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SPORTING EVENT & COMPETITION MANAGEMENT

Apart from providing talent management services to individual athletes and
national teams in the PRC, the Group also takes part in the coordination and
management of nationwide sporting events and competitions, and provides
professional brand marketing and consulting services.

The Group endured its effort in promoting basketball among the young
generations in the PRC. With the commercial rights secured since 2013, we
continued to provide commercial management and marketing services for the
Four-Level School Basketball Leagues (CUBA, CUBS, CHBL and CJBL) during
the reporting period. The Group has successfully introduced a popular food

brand and a widely-used online platform in the PRC as the premium sponsor and
media partner to the leagues, respectively. Capitalised on the Group’s experiences
and expertise in coordinating the leagues, and coupled with the joint marketing
efforts with popular retail food brand and social media platform, the leagues had
successfully attracted the attention of spectators and the public.

EBEEIREEER

Bk T RE R+ B ES) 8 KB KB R L
AEEREIN AEET28Z E2E
AL BENERNEETE WiRMH
an K T 355 e B K o W AR A%

F=3
A

8
72
=

A
B
ES

AEE-—ENHETRELFERBEHITMA
TE#H N - BT =FRNENHERE LK
B (R B KL E TR E (CUBA) - PRI AE
A TR R AR B 2R (CUBS) ~ T B 5 &5 TR

(CHBL) X AR B ¥ Fh EE BR B B (CUBL) ) 2 B 3£ 8
B AEBERBREHRNES BB ERY
REBSELCRBMERERSE I BE
EREARKINSI AR E —RANE R 5w g
EABMEBENETEZEYE UKREEIER
FRMNGETFAIEREEREIERYE - RE
AEBRERBEA BB MEENS
HEEXEINZTERMMER R EREF
EMERKNER ZEHERIRSIEBR
WEDE KA ANTRER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

15



16

BUSINESS REVIEW > SPORTS
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Furthermore, we secured the commercial rights to participate in coordinating
world-class badminton tournaments, namely, “Li-Ning BWF Thomas & Uber Cup
Finals 2014" held in India and “Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014" held in
Denmark. The number of participants and spectators saw a growth as a result of
increasing marketing presence and influence of the tournaments over the years.

During the reporting period, the Group successfully secured the coordination and
commercial development rights of “2015 Li-Ning China 10K Running League”.

It is expected to take place in ten cities across the PRC, including Shanghali,
Beijing, Guangzhou, Wuhan, Xi'an, Xuzhou and Zhengzhou, etc, starting from April
2015, The Group also made collaborative efforts in coordinating and promoting
a series of charity running events for another sports company in six cities across
the PRC during the reporting period. It received overwhelming response from the
participants.

With our leading reputation and experiences in managing scalable nationwide
sporting events and competitions, the Group expects to have more cooperation
opportunities on sporting event management with different partners and clients in
the coming year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW » COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

EBFERE > HEERE

The Group strives for promoting a sportive, green and healthy living environment
by means of supplying environmentally-friendly industrial building materials

and adopting construction techniques, as well as identifying sports community,
property development and sports-related commercial opportunities in the PRC.
We held discussions with different prospective contracting parties, including

local governments, property development companies and established financial
institutions in relation to various potential property development projects, including
sports community development, and sports-related commercial opportunities, and
have inaugurated strategic partnerships in the past year. By collaborating efforts
and achieving synergies with strategic partners, the Group has succeeded in
laying a solid foundation for further development and expansion of this business
segment, with an aim to ultimately making it a major growth driver for the Group.

The Group has entered into a non-legally binding Memorandum of Strategic
Cooperation and Understanding in September 2014 to inaugurate a strategic
partnership with CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd. (“CITIC PE") on
cooperation projects (the “Projects”) in respect of the sports industry in the PRC.
The Group intends to provide professional advice and sports resources for the
sports facilities in the Projects and CITIC PE intends to provide favorable terms

of cooperation to any of the Group’s possible investment in the Projects. The
parties will collaborate in the Projects and share cooperative platforms, resources,
information and advice.

Since the second quarter of 2013, the Group has commenced business at our
industrial plants at Shenyang in manufacturing and sales of precast concrete
products and glass-fiber reinforced concrete products, which are now widely used
for building constructions and landscape design. Our precast concrete products
and glass-fiber reinforced concrete decorative products and furniture are well-
received by local governments and corporates in the PRC. Projects that utilised
our industrial building materials and adopted our construction techniques during
the reporting period included Harbin Grand Theater located in Songbei district,
and the sandstone wall construction at the landscape belt along the river in
Liaoning Development Zone. The Group was also in discussions with prospective
contracting parties on collaborative construction projects.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s consolidated revenue was
HK$111.4 million (2013: HK$125.2 million), representing a decline of 11.0%.
The decrease was mainly due to a slowdown in the production and sale of precast
concrete products and glass-fiber reinforced concrete products of the Community
Development segment. The total gross profit of the Group for the year was
HK$11.2 million (2013: HK$20.5 million). The decline in gross profit was mainly
caused by a drop in the gross profit margin for the sports segment.

The Group’s other revenue and other net income/loss for the year amounted to
HK$15.6 million (2013: HK$109.2 million). Interest income and loss on disposal
of subsidiaries were the main contributors to the other revenue and other net
income/loss during the year, whereas the net underwriting commission fee of
HK$13.0 million for acting as one of the underwriters of the 2013 Li Ning Open
Offer together with a fair value gain on derivative financial assets in the amount
of HK$62.5 million in relation to the profit guarantees (the “Profit Guarantees”)
given by the vendors at the time the Group acquired the sports business segment
contributed to the Group’s other revenue and other net income/loss during 2013.
Details of Profit Guarantees were set out in the section “Profit Guarantees”.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$34.2 million
(2013: HK$31.2 million) representing an increase of HK$3.0 million or 9.6% as
compared to the year of 2013. The increase was attributable to the expenditures
in marketing and promotional activities of our sports businesses in relation to
basketball leagues and other sports events for the year.

Administrative and other operating expenses (“Administrative Expenses’)

incurred in the year totaling HK$155.2 million (2013: HK$138.2 million),
representing an increase of 12.3%. The increase was due primarily to non-cash
items in Administrative Expenses, which amounted to HK$65.7 million (2013:
HK$48.8 million), mainly included share options expenses, foreign exchange
losses and depreciation of fixed assets, etc. Excluding these major non-cash
itemns, Administrative Expenses in 2014 would have amounted to HK$89.5 million
(2013: HK$89.4 million).
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Li Ning Co is accounted for as an associate of the Group. The Group has adopted
the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the
attributable share of associate's results based on the financial statements drawn
up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater
than three months. During the year, the Group shared the loss of an associate
amounting to HK$299.6 million (2013: HK$180.0 million) based on its adjusted
financial results for the twelve months ended 30 September 2014 and adjusted
for any significant events or transactions for the period from 1 October 2014 to
31 December 2014,

The loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year was
HK$462.2 million (2013: HK$640.9 million), representing a decrease of
HK$178.7 million or 27.9% as compared to the year of 2013,

Major non-cash items for the year included share of loss of an associate of
HK$299.6 million, share option expenses of HK$50.0 million and net exchange
losses of HK$11.2 million, together with other non-cash items, with a net impact
to the Group's results of HK$376.5 million, whereas major non-cash items in
2013 included impairment of goodwill of HK$269.8 million, fair value loss on
derivative financial liabilities of HK$156.0 million, share of loss of an associate
of HK$180.0 million, share option expenses of HK$30.1 million, fair value gain
on profit guarantee of HK$62.5 million, together with other non-cash items, with
an aggregate impact to the Group's results of HK$569.0 million. In the absence
of such significant non-cash items, the Group would have recorded a net loss of
HK$85.7 million in 2014 (2013: HK$71.9 million).

SEGMENT

Sports

The sports segment continued its business which encompasses sports talent
management, sports and athletic related consulting, event production and
coordination of sports competitions. Since 2013, the Group has successfully
secured commercial rights to the Four-Level School Basketball Leagues in the
PRC, namely, Chinese University Basketball Association (CUBA), Chinese University
Basketball Super League (CUBS), Chinese High School Basketball League (CHBL)
and Chinese Junior School Basketball League (CJBL). The Group also secured
commercial rights to world-class badminton tournaments both in the PRC and
overseas, including Li-Ning BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2014 held in India
and Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014 held in Denmark during the year.
The abovementioned commercial rights generated revenue of an aggregate
amount of HK$87.0 million, representing a significant contribution to the Group's
overall revenue during the year (2013: HK$67.9 million).
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In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Group helped coordinating and promoting a
series of charity running events for a sports company in six cities across the PRC,
which generated additional revenue for the Group during the reporting period.
The Group also secured the coordination and commercial development rights of
2015 Li-Ning China 10K Running League”.

During the year, the sports segment generated a revenue of HK$97.3 million
(2013: HK$91.6 million), representing an increase of 6%. The revenue increase
was driven by the revenue derived from the aforementioned commercial rights

to the basketball leagues and new running events . The segment recorded an
operating loss of HK$25.8 million (2013: HK$17.5 million) due to lower gross
profit margin for sports talent management income, higher operating expenses as
well as exchange losses incurred in 2014, It is the Group’s strategy to establish
an integrated sports platform leveraging on the existing resources of this business
segment. Promoting nationwide participation in sports is crucial to the Group for
enhancing the commercial values along the sports industry chain. The Group will
therefore continue its effort to capture and maximise the commercial values of our
sports resources and encourage social participation in sporting activities through
sports talent management, coordination and commercial management of popular
sporting events and competitions, as well as providing sports marketing and
consulting services, and engaging in community development with a sports theme.

Impairment Testing of Goodwill and other Intangible Assets in relation
to Sports Segment

The Company engaged American Appraisal, an independent valuer, to perform an
enterprise valuation of its sports segment in 2013,

Based on the impairment testing result, a full impairment of HK$269.8 million

was made against the goodwill attributable to the sports-related business
cash-generating unit in 2013.
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Community Development

The community development segment generated a revenue of HK$13.0 million

in 2014 (2013: HK$31.9 million). Since the second quarter of 2013, this
segment’s major business has been transformed from the leasing of industrial
plants located in Shenyang, the PRC, to the manufacturing of precast concrete
products and glass-fiber reinforced concrete products, with the Group’s continuing
endeavours to secure strategic alliance and opportunities in property development
and investment projects with sportive and healthy elements. This segment reported
an operating loss of HK$31.4 million (2013: HK$22.5 million) which was mainly
due to a slowdown in the production and sale of precast concrete products and
glass-fiber reinforced concrete products and our resources incurred to identify
and secure property development and investment opportunities in the PRC.

With the mastering of production techniques and streamlining of workflows, the
management expects to achieve a lower operating cost and enhance the business
model in the near future, hence improve profitability of this segment. In addition,
with the local government's intention to promote environmentally-friendly building
techniques, we expect a continuous growth in the demand of the segment’s
products. The management also expects potential contributions of these building
techniques to the success of the sports-themed community development
segment.

It is the Board’s intention to continue in identifying profitable property and
community development opportunities in different cities in the PRC. With the
continuous process of urbanisation and commercialisation of the sports industry
in the PRC, the Group has been dedicating its effort to promote a sportive and
healthy lifestyle in the community, and contribute to the new urbanisation in the
PRC. Echoing the PRC government’s strategy to promote nationwide physical
fitness, the Group actively held discussions with different prospective contracting
parties including local governments, property development companies and
established financial institutions, and to strike strategic partnerships in the past
year to explore cooperation opportunities on potential property development
projects, including sports community development, and sports-related commercial
opportunities in the PRC. The Group will continue to make every of our endeavour
to pursue development opportunities on sports communities with enormous
growth prospects in the PRC. We trust that the expected expansion of this
business segment will generate revenue and deliver returns to our stakeholders.
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Green Energy

Disposal of 76.9% equity interests in a subsidiary of the Group in Zhongshan,
the PRC was completed in March 2014, and the Group also disposed of

three other loss-making subsidiaries under this segment in December 2014,

A loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$3.0 million was recorded as a result.
Revenue of this segment for the year was HK$1.1 million (2013:HK$1.6 million)
and this segment has recorded an operating loss of HK$9.9 million (2013:
HK$7.6 million) for the year.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014, the net assets value of the Group decreased to
HK$3,873.0 million from HK$4,325.3 million as at 31 December 2013. The
decrease was mainly due to the loss of HK$462.2 million for the year.

The total non-current assets of the Group decreased from HK$3,338.9 million
as at 31 December 2013 to HK$2,990.3 million as at 31 December 2014, The
decrease was mainly brought about by the share of losses of an associate, Li
Ning Co of HK$299.6 million. Among the non-current assets as at 31 December
2014, there were investment properties held in Shenyang, the PRC, which was
stated at fair value of HK$221.2 million.

Current assets of the Group also recorded a decrease by HK$98.8 million from
HK$1,121.7 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$1,022.9 million as
at the end of the year. The decrease was mainly due to net cash used in the
Group’s operating activities. The key components of the current assets at the
reporting date were cash and bank deposits (including pledged deposits) of
HK$583.4 million (2013: HK$846.7 million) and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of HK$337.7 million (2013: HK$157.8 million).

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2014 were
HK$140.2 million, representing an increase of HK$4.9 million from that as at
31 December 2013. As at the end of the year, the Group has secured bank and
other loans amounted to HK$5.0 million (2013: HK$12.9 million).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash outflow from operations for the current year of
HK$89.8 million, representing an increase of HK$37.8 million compared to last
year (2013: HK$52.0 million). Increase in operating cash outflow was mainly due
to the rise in operating expenses during the year. The advance to an associate

of HK$187.5 million also caused an increase in net cash outflow during the

year. The above cash outflow has been partially offset by the net cash inflow
generated from investing activities, which were mainly attributable to the interest
income received of HK$10.3 million and proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$6.2 million during the year, together with financing activities, which are
mainly attributable to the exercise of share options of HK$16.2 million and issue
of unlisted warrants of the Company for net proceeds of HK$6.0 million during the
year.

The Group had bank and other borrowings of HK$5.0 million (2013:

HK$12.9 million) as at 31 December 2014. The Group has obtained bank
facilities of approximately HK$140.8 million (2013: HK$96.0 million), of which,
approximately HK$135.8 million remained unutilised as at 31 December 2014,
The Group has no gearing as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The Group
defines gearing ratio as ratio of net debt over equity plus net debt in which net
debt represents total bank and other borrowings less cash and bank balances.
The current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of the Group as at
31 December 2014 was approximately 7.3 (2013: 8.3). The Group's gearing
level and liquidity position were very healthy as at the reporting date. It is the
Group’s strategy to maintain a healthy and effective gearing ratio in a range of
Oto1.

Financial Management and Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s finance division at its headquarter in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group's treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in any speculative activities. As the
Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of the revenue and trading
transactions are settled in either HK$ or RMB. Accordingly, the majority of the
Group’s net current assets were denominated in either HK$ or RMB. Deposits
placed in various banks are mainly denominated in these two currencies. The
Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HK$ in line with its future
business and investment plans. The policies in place to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are considered to be
effective with the current foreign currency risk still considered manageable. The
Group has assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has not entered
into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement during the year and as at year
end date.
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Pledge on Deposit

As at 31 December 2014, a pledge over bank deposit amounting to
approximately RMB4.0 million (2013: RMB15.0 million) (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.0 million (2013: HK$19.2 million)) had been given by the
Group to secure the bank borrowings of a PRC subsidiary.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitments of

HK$3.2 million in respect of construction works in the PRC which were contracted
but not provided for (31 December 2013: Nil).

Profit Guarantees

In October 2010, the Company acquired the entire interest of Viva China Sports
Holding Limited and its subsidiary (the “Target Group”) at a consideration of
HK$332.0 million (the “Acquisition”). Under the Acquisition, the vendors of the
Target Group (the “Vendors”) guaranteed the Company that the consolidated
attributable net profit after taxation (net of minority interests) of the Target
Group as ascertained from the audited financial statements of the Target

Group prepared under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") a
guarantee period of three financial years (i.e. for the three consecutive financial
years ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013 ("Profit Guarantee Period”)
shall not be less than HK$30.0 million, HK$40.0 million and HK$50.0 million
for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively (the
"Profit Guarantee”). Under the agreement of the Acquisition, the Vendors shall
compensate the shortfall to the Company on a dollar-to-dollar basis where the
guaranteed profit for a financial year during the Profit Guarantee Period is not
met. The audited consolidated attributable net profit after taxation of the Target
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, which was derived from its
ordinary course of business, recorded a shortfall amounted to approximately
HK$61.3 million. The Vendors compensated the Company for the shortfall amount
by cash and the amount has been received in full during the year.
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Material Transactions
During the vear, the Group entered into the following material transactions:

(@)

In December 2012, the Company issued initial perpetual convertible
bonds at a principal amount of HK$780.0 million for the acquisition of
approximately 25.2% equity interest in Li Ning Co. The initial perpetual
convertible bonds which had a carrying value of HK$955.5 million are
convertible at the option of the bondholders into shares anytime at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per share. On 6 June 2014, all initial
perpetual convertible bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and were accounted for as a reclassification
within equity. Further details of the above were set out in the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 12 October 2012 and 7 November
2012, respectively.

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a warrant placing agreement
(the "Warrant Placing Agreement”) with RHB OSK Securities Hong Kong
Limited (the "Placing Agent”), an independent third party. Pursuant to

the Warrant Placing Agreement, the Placing Agent agreed to place up to
700,000,000 warrants at a consideration of HK$0.071 each, the warrants
conferring rights to subscribe for up to 700,000,000 ordinary shares

of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per share (subject to
adjustment) to the warrant placees who and their respective ultimate
beneficial owners are independent third parties. The warrants have an
exercise period of 18 months. The warrant placing was completed on

11 June 2014 and 700,000,000 warrants were issued to six placees

in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Warrant Placing
Agreement. An aggregated net proceeds of approximately HK$6.0 million
has been raised by the warrant placing and have been utilised by the Group
as general working capital. Further details of the above were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 26 May 2014 and 11 June 2014,
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() On 16 December 2014, VCHL entered into the VCHL Underwriting € RZTE—HEF+ZH+/XH VCHLE
Agreement with Li Ning Co, pursuant to which VCHL had conditionally BN RFIMVCHLE e Bt
committed to underwrite up to a maximum of 183,192,543 offer VCHLEﬁﬂﬂ#%Eﬁ“ $H5% %183,192,543
securities (representing a maximum subscription price of approximately NEBEEEHF (HERZSR Eﬁ X9
HK$476.3 million), minus any offer securities acquired by VCHL under 476,300,000/ 7T ) /B VCHLAA 2= 22 2 B 3%
successful excess application in the Li Ning Open Offer, as determined ’% RN RBMBENEREE
pursuant to the VCHL Underwriting Agreement. All proposed subscriptions BE(BREBVH BEEHEMEBEEE)
by VCHL in the Li Ning Open Offer will be in the form of convertible vcHLﬁA$ BNFABERIENTAZE
securities, with the initial conversion price of HK$2.60 per new LN Share ERBEEYHSUITRRESNER
issuable upon conversion (subject to adjustments). The Group has entered ET ABRRESTERANTER
into an irrevocable undertaking to subscribe for its full assured entitlement P ERERERFTTERMN2.60
of LN Offer Securities in the Li Ning Open Offer, in the form of LN AL (A THAE) AEBEZIEL AR T
Convertible Securities, for a maximum illustrative amount of approximately BHAE  UEEARRESFOEAR
HK$447.6 million. Further details of the above were set out in the Eﬁ HEHRZFTEQRAE ‘:P PEFEERE
Company’s announcement dated 16 December 2014, BENREFLSE SaaAtSE0A

447,600,000,%71 FallE—SFBERN
AR —F-—WE+-_A+RBZR

{Zﬁ o
Subsequent Events &=l
The Li Ning Open Offer was completed in January 2015. Approximately TENHBEECR T HEF—ATK Y
124,739,000 units of LN Convertible Securities were allotted to the Group 124 739 000fp =2 —Hﬁ‘ﬂx EAORETAE
with total consideration of approximately HK$324.3 million. In this connection, BB A324,300,0008 7T » BhUL T S
the Group’s equity interests in Li Ning Co has been diluted from 26.1% to E ? hE—A AEERFERQADN
approximately 25% with effect from January 2015. The Group received a gross BRAED 26 1% EE425% - REBBLIEMF
underwriting fee amounted to approximately HK$11.9 million in respect of acting FENAZENEFT —RBHEEESRBPIE
as one of the underwriters in the Li Ning Open Offer. £ #911,900,00078 7T °
Employees and Remuneration Policies & & R FH M BUR
Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund BT ERH REELESMHR B
contributions, medical benefits, education allowances and discretionary share BERA BERUREEHAEEE/M
options issued based on their contribution to the Group. Staff costs including BOBHEERE-BE-_T-—NFE+_H
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to “t+—HIEFE EIRAN(BEZEMNE)
HK$79.8 million (2013: HK$76.3 million). The Group also engages professional #79,800,000% 7T (=& — = % : 76,300,000
consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the remuneration policy which, in BIT) cAEBENTEEEEM UERHE

turn, would support the business growth of the Group. As at 31 December 2014, BBF N 2B AT AR E 2 7518

the Group employed 1471 (2013: 143) full-time employees and their remuneration K- RZTE—MF Jr_ A=+—8 Xx&&

was calculated with reference to the market rates. BRINGE(ZE—=F:143%2)2BEE -
"EZS @Hﬁﬂ%ﬁf%ﬂkifm °
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OUTLOOK

The PRC Government unveiled a series of guidelines in respect of the reforms
for the sports industry in the second half of 2014, which paved way for further
development of the sports industry. Followed by Premier of the State Council

Li Kegiang's speech on accelerating the sports industry development in a State
Council meeting in September 2014, the State Council announced the “Guiding
Opinion on Accelerating the Development of Sports Industry and Promoting
Sports Consumption” (the “Opinion”) in October 2014, which became a crucial
guiding framework in expediting the sports industry development for the following
decade. Promoting nationwide physical fitness has now been escalated to a
national strategy, with a target of sports industry output to exceed RMB5 trillion
by 2025. In December 2014, the General Administration of Sport of China
issued a reforming guiding plan on facilitating and enhancing public sports, and
officially eliminating commercial sporting events approval. The plans aimed to
push forward the implementation of the previously-published Nationwide Physical
Fitness Program and Rules, as well as the Opinion in enhancing the service scope
on public sports and promoting a working system for nationwide physical fitness.
It is affirming that the PRC Government has stepped up its effort in advocating
nationwide physical fitness and giving impetus to the evolution of the entire sports
sector and its integration with other industries, such as tourism and healthcare,
and ultimately making the sports industry a better and sustainable contributor to
the GDP of the country.

The Group’s long-standing mission of promoting a sportive and healthy community
in the PRC is well-aligned to the theme of the reforming guidelines put forth by
the PRC Government in the past year. Backed by the supportive government
policies, the Group will continue to leverage on its integrated sports platform with
our existing sports resources, management expertise and industry connections,
and make every endeavour to pursue profitable opportunities on different fronts of
the sports industry. Furthermore, the Group is dedicated to capture the values and
opportunities along the entire sports industry chain by achieving synergies with Li
Ning Co, and joining efforts with strategic partners, including established financial
institutions and property development companies. Riding on the promising industry
prospect, the Group believes that our business and expansion strategies can

be implemented in a timely manner, and ultimately deliver fruitful returns to our
shareholders.
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Mr. Li Chunyang

Mr. Chan James
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Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Ma Wing Man
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Non-Executive Director
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Director
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MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Ning, aged 52, has been the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”),
an executive Director and a member of the executive committee of the Company
since June 2010. Mr. Li was also appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the
Company with effect from 15 March 2012 and 22 May 2013 respectively. He is
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-
NING brand and currently the executive chairman, interim chief executive officer
and an executive director of Li Ning Co. He is primarily responsible for formulating
the overall corporate strategies and planning of LN Group and perform the duties
of chief executive officer of Li Ning Co with support from its incumbent senior
management. Mr. Li is the younger brother of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive
Director and the uncle of Mr. Li Qilin, who is a non-executive Director.

Mr. Liis one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six
gold medals in men’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” (“B2 1 ") in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic Games
in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making him
the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr. Li
became the Asian member of Athlete’s Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men's
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring in 1989 from his athlete career, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC. He
has dedicated the past over 20 years to the development of the business of LN
Group, achieving great contribution to the development of the PRC's sports goods
industry.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(4 F A E2) an executive M.B.A. degree from Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University ( 3k 7 K B2 ¢ 55 & 32 225 ) an honorary
doctorate in technology from Loughborough University in the United Kingdom and
an honorary degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary fellowship from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation”( 2=
FH %) and his genuine support to the active and retired Chinese athletes and
coaches in establishing "The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation” ( /F B4 i
) 8B B E 4 ) which aims at providing subsidies for further education and
trainings for athletes and to support educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as China's “WFP Goodwill Ambassador
Against Hunger”.
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MR. CHAN LING

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Ling, aged 43, is an executive Director, an authorised representative and
the compliance officer of the Company and a member of each of the executive
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan was also
appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company with effect from

22 May 2013. Mr. Chan had been a member and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 2 June 2010 and 23 June 20710 respectively,
and ceased to hold any office of this committee on 15 March 2012, Mr. Chan
joined the Group in June 2010 and is a director of Viva China Sports Holding
Limited, Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited and various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan was the chief executive officer of “The
Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”, He has over 10 years of working
experience in the media industry and in the sports agency industry.

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 46, is an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2010 and is
a director of FEFLLEMEE B 2R (46 51) AR ), Viva China Community
Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a bachelor's degree in Economics.
He was one of the founders of “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”. In
1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics Championships.

MR. CHAN JAMES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan James, aged 61, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.

Chan joined the Group in June 2013. He is an executive director, the project
director and a member of the executive committee of Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited™ (‘PCPD", Stock Code: 0432). PCPD is mainly engaged in
developing and managing premium property and infrastructure projects, as well as
investing in premium-grade buildings, in the Asia-Pacific region and is majority-
owned by PCCW Limited* (“PCCW”", Stock Code: 0008). Mr. Chan is responsible
for managing various property projects of PCPD and its subsidiaries. He was
responsible for the project execution of the Cyberport project and has overall
responsibility for all aspects of the construction works.

Prior to joining PCCW in October 2002, Mr. Chan was a practicing architect,
with comprehensive experience in design, planning and land matters, design
development and construction management of major investment properties,

including a wide range of industrial and warehousing, commercial, retail and
residential developments in Hong Kong and overseas. He possesses a wide

spectrum of experience in the property industry.

The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange

PREE &4

EEAREHNITESE

PRESLAE O+ =5 BARARITES &
BRERRERTTURARTRITZES R
FNEEEsKE - RAEENR_ZTE—=F
AAZ T RAEZEARARRIEERE M
SENSFBEBE—EFAHE_ZE—F
FRAZtTZHARBRETARRIREZZEEX
BRTIE IR -_E——FE=A+HBTH
BEEZZESEWBE - REER_T—F
FRAMAREE W AFELFBEE TR
BRAFEAFRLEFEBIZRER R A
MARNBIZRMBRARIZES - REAEEGE
[FEIBEFGHEHEES | BHF - HREET
ENBELLCATEREB TFLER-

FHEB L

BITEE
FERBERE O+TRR REARFARTES
RUATEEERE RN_T—ZFFXAMA
AEE WRFARBEEER (ER)AR
~AE EN B A EIERAR QR KA
RAZZMNBRARCER -FTEEN_ZTE
MEFERNIERAE BEEeREXRELS
fL-RAERTREHEHEES | AIRAZ
—R—ANNFER—AN—F FREL
RERREEEE-

REB K&

FHITEE

FREBELE Nt —5 REARAIFATE
F-RAEER-ZE—=FRAMALXER-
BRAMKITWEZERARRAE ([EXi
B BRI 0432) ZHMITERHRAR 4
ENMRITRZEENRBE BAMEZTERK
RREABERIREBREBEMERERE
B URKETRAYME BREMBMAR
~na ([EMRAR] - 5% :0008) #FH
ARBoE- RELBEERERAMERE
MEBARZZEMEERTE -KEAEHN
THEEEE BAEAMERTIREETE
MEBREE-

RAER -_ZTZT_F+AMABRBRAE
BUZEE AXREMEMEANRT RE
REIWER RiTFAELREZEEE EFE
REBLBINZREZIERLRE BX TE
REEMEERAR RENERERER

aur
¥

HERA MR £

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

33



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES »

EENSNEBAELGHE»

He has been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited* (Stock Code: 0925) since June 2011, He is also a member
of the board of governors of The Independent Schools Foundation Academy.

Mr. Chan holds a bachelor of arts in architectural studies degree from the
University of Hong Kong, a bachelor of architecture degree from University of
Dundee in Scotland and an executive master of business administration degree
from Tsinghua University. He is qualified as the Authorised Person (List I) and
Registered Architect in Hong Kong, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Architects, The Royal Institute of British Architects and The Australian Institute of
Architects.

MR. LI QILIN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 28, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li joined
the Group in June 2013. Mr. Li has been a director of Lead Ahead Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, since June 2010.

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and has been an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited since January 2010. Mr. Li is
the son of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive Director and the nephew of Mr. Li
Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director.

MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 49, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2010. Mr. Ma
was a member of the nomination committee of the Company during the period
from 2 June 2010 to 15 March 2012, Mr. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in finance and administration. Mr. Ma has been employed by “Li Ning Foundation”
as the financial controller since 2005. From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Ma had been
employed first as accountant and later as financial and accounting manager of
Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.) Company Limited. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Ma was
employed as assistant accountant by Wong's Circuits (PTH) Limited, which was a
subsidiary of Wong’s International Holdings Limited* (Stock Code: 0099).

The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
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Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional

diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment &
foreign enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by School of Management
Zhongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MR. CHEN JOHNNY

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Johnny, aged 55, has been an independent non-executive Director,

the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company since June 2010. He was also
appointed as a member of the nomination committee of the Company with effect
from 15 March 2013. From 2013 to 2014, Mr. Chen was the chairman of the
Life and General Insurance businesses of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in
China. From 2012 to 2014, Mr. Chen was also a member of the leadership
team and the Asia Pacific executive committee of Zurich. From 2010 to 2013,
Mr. Chen was the chief executive officer of Asia Pacific General Insurance of
Zurich Financial Services Ltd. From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Chen was the chief
executive officer of Greater China and South East Asia of Zurich. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Chen was the chief executive officer of Greater China region of Zurich.
Prior 1o joining Zurich, Mr. Chen was an executive member of the Greater China
management board and of the operating committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC"). He was also the managing partner of PwC’s Beijing office. Mr. Chen has
also been a director of the American Chamber of Commerce in China since 1995,
Since February 2009, Mr. Chen has been an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
of Stella International Holdings Limited* (Stock Code: 1836). Mr. Chen was a
non-executive director of New China Life Insurance Company Ltd.” (Stock Code:
1336) during the period from 2005 to 14 January 2014, The shares of New
China Life Insurance Company Ltd. commenced listing on the Stock Exchange on
15 December 2011. Mr. Chen received a master's degree in accounting from the
University of Rhode Island and is a U.S. qualified certified public accountant.

The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. LIEN JOWN JING, VINCENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of both the audit committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Lien joined the Group in June 2013, Mr. Lien has served as
independent non-executive director of Up Energy Development Group Limited*
(Stock Code: 0307), Focus Media Network Limited* (Stock Code: 8112) and

CT Environmental Group Limited* (Stock Code: 1363) since 1 April 2011,

9 June 2011 and 15 April 2014 respectively. On 16 April 2013, he has been
appointed as a non-executive director of Primeline Energy Holdings Inc. (TSX
Venture Exchange trading symbol: PEH), the shares of which are listed on the TSX
Venture Exchange in Canada. He has also been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of ILFS Wind Power Limited, a Singapore company, with effect
from 3 September 2013. Mr. Lien was the chairman and an independent non-
executive director of Loyz Energy Limited, a company listed in Singapore, during
the period from 6 November 2013 to 5 November 2014,

Mr. Lien is currently a director of Wah Hin & Company, a Singapore incorporated
private investment holding company and the Maritime and Port Authority

of Singapore. He has over 25 years of experience in the banking industry,
specializing in corporate finance and capital management in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Singapore and South-east Asia. Mr. Lien held various senior positions at
several major multinational banking institutions including Swiss Bank Corporation
and Bankers Trust & Company. He was the managing director in the financial
institutions & public sector division of ABN AMRO Bank.

Mr. Lien obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from the University

of New Brunswick in 1986.

The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. NG SAU KEI, WILFRED RTFEKXE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BUIHBITESE

Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred, aged 50, has been an independent non-executive RFEEE A+ RZZTE—ZTF AR

Director and a member of both the audit committee and the remuneration —BEHEARBBLIIFRTESUREZE

committee of the Company since June 2070. Mr. Ng was appointed as a member BgkFMEEE s KB REEDHINC

of the nomination committee and the chairman of remuneration committee of the T —F=-A+HRBRZZE—=F=ZA+H

Company with effect from 15 March 2012 and 15 March 20713 respectively. Mr. HEZERALNRIRAZEENE KRN A

Ng joined the Group in June 2010. Mr. Ng was an independent non-executive FTHEEEER REENR_ZE—ZF A

director of China Renji Medical Group Limited* (Stock Code: 648, formerly known MAREE REEANR_ZEZELFHA=T

as Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited) during the period from BTN \F+A—BILHBETHEC

30 April 2007 to 1 October 2008. BREESEERA AR (FIBEEZRABRA
A RS 648) MBI IFHITES -

Mr. Ng holds positions in various charitable and social organisations. He is a REERZALATEERLEEBELA

member of the advisory board of Yanchai Hospital, of which he was the chairman B HEEN_EENEE_T-TFEERF

of the board of directors during the term of year 2009-2010. He is also the EEACEEREERER RECEER

president of the Handball Association, Hong Kang, China. Eé HRKEB-FNMATEHESEFHRAEASTS

Mr. Ng also serves as a member of certain advisory committees of the HKSAR RAEENMAEBFRERNE THHAZESD

Government, namely the Sports Commission and The Fight Crime Committee. ZE ETOEBEZESNERENTEZE

He was awarded the Medal of Honour in 2004 and the Silver Bauhinia Star in @ RAEGLN -_ETENEEETEERBTE

2010 and appointed as an unofficial Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR BREBHE BR T SFEBRBHREA

Government. In May 2011, Mr. Ng received a Hon. Doctor of Laws degree from HE MR LFREITmAIEETAF

the University of Western Ontario. WM RIEAN_E——FH HEALKE
A 2 (University of Western Ontario) 38 % 4% 22 % 12
BT EBALe

The shares of this company is listed on the Stock Exchange A E 2 B B R BT BT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREBAE

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Chan Ling and Mr. Li Chunyang, being the executive Directors, are #fTE EFEAL 4 RELEMNTHB AL

also the senior management of the Group. NAERERSHRERAER

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS TRESEREH 2 HE

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in details RIRBIZE R B AR BISE17. 50AMN & - AR

of the Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the AEE_ZE—NOFAA=+THLERNEAZ

Company for the six months ended 30 June 20714 are set out below: REIRE BEIR EFE R EFHFIBEYW
T

Name Details of Changes

£ BEFE

Mr. Li Ning appointed as the interim chief executive officer of Li Ning Co with effect from 18 March 2015

FEEL ZEARFTERAZREBITHAR B-_Z—HAF=-A+t/\BEEX

Mr. Li Chunyang

FHRBEE

under the service agreement between the Company and Mr. Li Chunyang as an executive Director, he is
entitled to receive an annual director’s fee of HK$150,000, a fixed annual salary of HK$840,000 and an
annual housing benefit of not exceeding RMB250,000 with effect from June 2014 which were determined
with reference to the services provided by him and his duties and responsibilities with the Group
BERARAEFFGEERETNTES 2 RBHZ  BERWIREEESHE150,000
B IT 0 Bl E FEH£840,0007% 7T K T HEiBARKE250,000m e FEFERM B -2 —NH
FRAREN WH2EFERMBEHIBRBRERAEECBERETERE

Mr. Chen Johnny

REZRFTE

resigned as chairman of Life and General Insurance businesses of Zurich Insurance Group in China on

1 September 2014

R-ZE-—MFAA-BREHRERREEZ ASEYERRERTERTE

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

BRIESLAE

resigned as the chairman and an independent non-executive director of Loyz Energy Limited, a company listed

in Singapore, with effect from 6 November 2014

B R 03 L 2 X BlLoyz Energy LimitedZ EE MBI IFAITER - B — T —MWF+—

ARBRAER
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company

and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) sports talent management

and competition/event production and management and provision of sports
consultancy service; (i) property and community development; and (iii) marketing
and sale of air-conditioning systems.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 67 to 142,

The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 2,400,000,000 Shares upon conversion
of certain convertible bonds and 22,302,000 Shares pursuant to the Company’s
share option scheme. The Company also issued unlisted warrants and granted
share options which are convertible into Shares. Details of changes in the
Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements,
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RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution

to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$2,135,898,000 (2013: HK$1,866,911,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 71 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers (including LN
Group) accounted for approximately 90% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 74% of the
total sales.

Purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
68% the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 48% of the total purchases.

Mr. Li Ning is an executive director of both the Company and Li Ning Co and he
was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be interested in the share capital
of Li Ning Co during the year ended 31 December 2014, details of which are
set out in note 3 under “Interests and short positions of Directors and the Chief
Executive in the Shares and underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations” of this report.

Save as disclosed above for the purpose of the Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing
Rules, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 144 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Ling (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Li Chunyang

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan James

Mr. Li Qilin

Mr. Ma Wing Man

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

Mr. Ng Sau Kel, Wilfred

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Wing Man, Mr. Lien Jown Jing,
Vincent and Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred will retire as Directors by rotation and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election in accordance with articles 108(A) and
108(B) of the articles of association of the Company and pursuant to Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Further particulars of the Directors to be re-elected
at the forthcoming annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the
shareholders sent together with this annual report. All other existing Directors shall
continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 30 to 37 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  3EALAREIZERERAF]

EE
EFAMBEARESHEHEZERTET:

HITES

FEEL (ZTERTHAAZ)
ReEft (2E8EH)
FHREBEE

FHITES
BRAE B L
FRBEE
FwX et

BYFUTES
RERTE
BRIERAE
RTFELE

FEEMNEHARBARR 2 HBERME
mESE-

REEBRRBFRES BEAQAGABER
MRIZE108(A) R 108BIRIA RARIE I MR £
BMAIM SRS Bk AEE BEREEERR
TEHIEABRESR REHAERTBEE
BEET RNEERREFASEREEL
BLHE BRBEATRARR —HFEZ
BHRAN -ESTBREESHTRBE-

EEREREEBASHE
BERERAEBESNEBABZEEFS &
RAFIREI0EITA ©

EECRBEEL
BRREERRAFASERETCESME
BARBR AR NG E—FRNBEED
BB CEEBERIN MR IEZREEL -

REREZZMEFBARBE AN B
WA MIEES



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS »
EETWME»

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the businesses of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who,

as the Board or a committee comprising Directors and members of the senior
management of the Company (the "Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the Board or the Committee
(as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for period of
10 years commencing on 29 June 2010.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company
may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company under the limit,
as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders. The Scheme Mandate
Limit amounted to 607,639,472 Shares following the approval of refreshment by
the Shareholders on 4 November 2013,

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue under
the Scheme is 369,989,472, representing 4.35% of the existing number of
issued Shares. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

is determinable by the Board or the Committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Movement of the share options under the Scheme outstanding as at the end of
the reporting year are as follows:
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Number of Share Options

BREHA
Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Reclassified Balance
as at during during  lapsed during during as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2014 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2014
R-Z-M§
T+=A
R-Z-ME RER RER =t-H
R AH -R-B&% REARE REARTE FH/4% EHNE @e
Directors
EE
LI Ning 02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
B3 “Z-Zf+tAZH
CHAN Ling 02.07.2010 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
= —E-TE+AZH
20.09.2011 8,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - 4,000,000@
—T——%NAZTH
02.07.2013 60,000,000 - - - - 60,000,000
T+ A=A
LI Chunyang 02.07.2010 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
55 —E-TE+AZH
20.09.2011 8,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - 4,000,000?
—T—%NAZTH
02.07.2013 52,000,000 - - - 52,000,000
—T-=%tAZH
CHAN James 02.07.2013 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,0009
LI Qilin 02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,0009
THB —E-ZH+t A=A
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Number of Share Options
BREZE
Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Reclassified Balance
as at during during  lapsed during during as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2014 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2014
R-Z—-ME
+=A8
R-ZZ-DF RER RER =+-H
R AH -A-R&H% REARE RERTHE FH/&X EFNE 33
MA Wing Man 02.07.2010 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
597 —E-TE+AZH
20.09.2017 1,200,000 - (600,000 - - 600,000®
ZE——FAAZTH
02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
—E-Z5+AZH
CHEN Johnny 02.07.201 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
BER —E-TE+AZH
20.09.2017 1,200,000 - (600,000) - - 600,000®
ZE——FAAZ+H
02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
ZZ-=%+tHZH
LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent 02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
BRIE “E-=F+AZH
NG Sau Kei, Wilfred 02.07.2010 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
RTFE “E-LFLAZH
20.09.2011 1,200,000 - - (600,000) - 600,000®
ZE——FAAZTH
02.07.2013 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
—E-=5+A=H
197,600,000 - (9,200,000) (600,000 - 187,800,000
Other employees
€S
In aggregate 02.07.2010 3,400,000 - - - - 3,400,0000
AF —E-THE+AZH
In aggregate 06.09.2010 7,960,000 - - (360,000) (4,000,000) 3,600,000
AF ZE-THNARA
@\qggregate 20,%9‘20W 1 24,400,002 - (7,758,000) (2,436,000) (1,600,000  12,606,002®
[=s) — —
In aggregate 02.07.2013 99,300,000 - (2,112,000) (3,300,000) (2,888,000) 91,000,000
BF —E-=5+AZH
In aggregate 20.06.2014 - 33,650,000 - (1,200,000) - 32,450,000
A% “E-mERAZTH
135,060,002 33,650,000 (9,870,000) (7,296,000) (8,488,000) 143,056,002
Other grantees
HirA®A
In aggregate 06.09.2010 2,400,000 - - 4,000,000 6,400,0000"
Ak ZE2-ZTFNARA
In aggregate 20.09.2011 20,000,000 - (3,232,000) (5,168,000) 1,600,000 13,200,000
AF “E——%NAZ+H
In aggregate 02.07.2013 114,500,000 - - - 2,888,000  117,388,0001"
G “E-=F+AZH
In aggregate 20.06.2014 - 204,000,000 - - — 204,000,000
CH —E-mERAZTH
136,900,000 204,000,000 (3,232,000) (5,168,000) 8,488,000 340,988,000
469,560,002 237,650,000 (22,302,000) (13,064,000) - 671,844,002
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Notes:

The share options are exercisable for a period of 5 years after vested subject to the vesting
schedule in tranches of one-third each on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of
grant respectively.

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 4,000,000 share options
with exercisable period from 20 September 2012 to 19 September 2014 and (i) 4,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2013 to 19 September 2015. The

number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 4,000,000 respectively as at
31 December 2014.

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 600,000 share options
with exercisable period from 20 September 2012 to 19 September 2014 and (i) 600,000

share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2013 to 19 September 2015. The
number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 600,000 respectively as at
31 December 2014.

The share options are exercisable for a period of 3 years after vested subject to the vesting
schedule in tranches of one-fourth each on 2 July 2013, 2 July 2014, 2 July 2015 and
2 July 2016 respectively.

The share options are exercisable for a period of 3 years after vested subject to the vesting
schedule in tranches of one-third each on 2 July 2014, 2 July 2015 and 2 July 2016
respectively.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 1,133,333 share options with exercisable period
from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2016; (i) 1,133,333 share options with exercisable period from
2 July 2012 to 1 July 2017; and (jii) 1,133,334 share options with exercisable period from

2 July 2013 to 1 July 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 1,520,000 share
options with exercisable period from 6 September 2011 to 5 September 2016; (ii)
1,520,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2012 to 5 September
2017; (i) 1,520,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2013 to

5 September 2018; (iv) 2,200,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September
2014 to 5 September 2019; and (v) 1,200,000 share options with exercisable period from
6 September 2015 t0 5 September 2020. The number of share options under (i), (ii), (iii),
(iv) and (v) of this note was 400,000, 400,000, 400,000, 1,200,000 and 1,200,000
respectively as at 31 December 2014,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  3EALAREIZERERAF]

GEE

BREATNEBRZAFTAITE HAESBIREL
ZARE— FB_RFE-RATRREREOINLE
EB=HZ—-

RZE-—NF-A—BZHERESETIEE:
fﬂéiﬁ;ﬁ;% T——_FHNAZ+HEZZ—MF
nﬁ+n524oooooomﬁﬂxﬁé&wﬂiﬁﬂﬂ%_
T—=FAAZ+RE-ZT—AFNA+AIAB
24,000,000 B AR ARE o Z BT 5 () B (i) 2B T 2 B AR
HER-_Z—NF+_A=1+—B58AZH L
4,000,00017 °

RZE—NF-A—BZHERESETIEE:
fﬂiﬁﬂﬂ% T-——FhA=ZF+HE=Z— mi
nH+nEZ6ooooo{\ﬂﬁﬁxﬁ§&nmﬁﬁﬂ%
—=FNVAZt+HE=Z— £¢nﬂ+naz
600,00015 &% A& 42 o AN BT 5 () & (03B T 2 B AR 4 8%
ER-ZE—MF+_A=Z+—HORAZH K
600,000 °

E%H&%ﬂﬁé&%%%&iiwﬂi"f’&z/ﬁ%ﬂﬁa—--
—:itﬂ_ﬁ‘_"—ﬂlitﬂ H-—ZZF—1%
FELtAZARZZE-—R"FLAZ E?ﬁzﬁm%ﬁf&ﬁﬁ
Ttt%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁz—"
BIRETNREBRZ=FR{TL HEASFINR_Z
—FtEtAZH ZE-hAFEAZAR=Z
FEtAZBREBREIH %’E*"Z—‘:

BREBETIEE: ((TEHA-_T——F
AZRE=Z— xitﬂ H 21,133,33317 f& %
e ()fTEBRA T ——_F+tAZAE_T—+
F+HA—H21,133,3330 BB M R(iNfT{EE B
—T—=FtAZBEZ-N\FLA—AZ
1,133,33417 & AR 4 -

RZE—NF-A—BZHERESETIEE:
ﬁﬁ%ﬁi’f‘g_i@——iﬂﬂ/\ﬁi_? NEN
H£521 520,00017 i R&AE : (NTTEERA=Z—=
FRARNBEZZ—EF N AAHZ1520,0000
B (1TTERR-_E—=ZFNABEZZ
— \E N A B 21,520,00017 88 B4 © (v)77 & £
A-ZE—NFNAARNBE-_Z—NAFNAARAH
22,200,000 AR #E: RWITHEEBR-Z—RAF
NARNBEZZ=ZFh A A H 21,200,000 #
5 AE o A B EE () ~ (i)~ (i) (R (WBZBIREZAR
RZZT—MNF+=A=+—H8%5351A400,0001 -
400,0001% ~400,0001% ~ 1,200,00015 K2.1,200,0001% ©
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(10)

(11

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: () 8,066,666 share options
with exercisable period from 20 September 2012 to 19 September 2014; (i) 8,066,669
share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2013 to 19 September 2015; (iii)
4,266,667 share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2014 to 19 September
2016; and (iv) 4,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2015 to
19 September 2017. The number of share options under (i), (i), (iii) and (iv) of this note was 0,
6,139,335, 3,366,667 and 3,100,000 respectively as at 31 December 2014,

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: () 24,300,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2013 to 1 July 2016; (i) 25,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2014 to 1 July 2017; (iii) 25,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018; and (iv) 25,000,000

share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of share
options under (i), (ii), (i) and (iv) of this note was 20,500,000, 23,500,000, 23,500,000 and
23,500,000 respectively as at 31 December 2014.

The share options granted comprised the following: (i) 5,300,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 June 2014 to 19 June 2017; (i) 9,449,998 share options with
exercisable period from 20 June 2015 to 19 June 2018; (iii) 9,450,001 share options with
exercisable period from 20 June 2016 to 19 June 2019; and (iv) 9,450,001 share options
with exercisable period from 20 June 2017 to 19 June 2020. The number of share options
under (i), (if), (iiiy and (iv) of this note was 5,300,000, 9,049,998, 9,050,001 and 9,050,001
respectively as at 31 December 2014,

The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 800,000 share options
with exercisable period from 6 September 2011 to 5 September 2016; (i) 800,000 share
options with exercisable period from 6 September 2012 to 5 September 2017; and (iii)
800,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2013 to 5 September
2018. The number of share options under (i), (i) and (iii) of this note was 1,800,000,
1,800,000 and 1,800,000 respectively as at 31 December 2014 and there was also
1,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2014 to 5 September
2019 in this note as at 31 December 2014.

(10)

(11

NI —NF—A—BZBRERIETIISE:
(Mﬂiﬁﬂﬁ—%——inﬂ—+E|§:5E—E$
LA+ N A 28,066,6661) & B #E : ()TTEHAZ
T-=FNA=+AHZE *%*ﬁiﬂﬂﬂLhEZ
8,066,6691) B A% : (iNfTFEH AT —MFENA
—tBRE-Z— /\¢NH+EEIZ42666671‘5§
R RWITERA-Z—RFAAZF+HES
T—tF N A+ N8 24,000,000 85 % # o A K
FEO) (i) (i) R (VB2 BREREN _ZE—TOF+=
A=+—B%31AZ1 6,139,335 * 3,366,66717
%2.3,100,00013

N_T-NE—-A-RAZBEESETIIEE: ()

TERAR-E—=F+tAZHE=-Z— /\itﬁ
—52243000001\%1&%& HITEHA=FT—
F+A-RAE-_ZT—tHFLAH— 5225000000

AR ; wﬂiﬁﬂﬁff HELAZARE
T— )\itﬂ A 2.25,000,00017 B8 A& 42 © K2 (V)77

FEHAE-_ZT—"FLtA-HBE-_T—hF+tA
—H 225 000, ooof\ﬁﬁﬁxﬁé 2B R ()~ (i) ~ (i) B2 (iv)
B EBEHER-_T—NF+_-_A= + B

7 420,500,000 * 23,500,000@ + 23,500,000 &
23,500,000

EREZERERETISE: ((1TEHAE=Z
—mi/—\ﬂ—wLElK—%—ti/—\HJrnElz
5,300,000 B i #E : ()T R —ZE—RF XA
—tBEE=%— /\E/\ﬂ+ﬂ5294499981‘ﬂ%
R (ifTERAS—R"FAAZ+HE=ZT
—NEN A+ B 29,450,001 B B4 « K (7T
ﬁﬁﬁﬁazﬁftﬁﬁﬂﬁai_g_--ir\
)5]+7LE|2945OOOM\E§HXTE 2B 5 () « (il

RivEZ BRESAR _T—HNF+_A= +—

A % Bl A5,300,00017 9,049,998@ +9,050,0011% K.
9,050,0011%

RIT—NFEF—A—BZBRERIETIISE:
(fITEHE-ZE——FNLARNAEZE=ZE—XFN
HEEZBOOOOOPH%ME (TEBHA=ZE—=
FNRANBEZZT—LFNA A H 28000001 i
Hﬂiéi&iii«71iﬁﬁi%*==*:¢ﬂﬂﬁﬁi:§
ﬂ\ihﬂﬂamooooom%w&* AP EE (i)
mlﬁzﬁﬁﬁxﬁs%zaw —mE+=ZA= +—

2 51 41,800,000 + 1,800, 00019}&1,800,0001’7} ’
ﬂﬁAzKMTEEP -z IT_EIEJr—H:Jr—EaTﬁ
TEHE-ZT—NFALARNBE-Z—NAFNA
1 H 21,000,000 S A% 4 o
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(12)  The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 6,000,000 share options (12)
with exercisable period from 20 September 2012 to 19 September 2014; (i) 6,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2013 to 19 September 2015; (iii)
4,800,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2014 to 19 September
2016; and (iv) 3,200,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 September 2015 to
19 September 2017. The number of share options under (i), (i), (ifi) and (iv) of this note was 0,
5,200,000, 4,800,000 and 3,200,000 respectively as at 31 December 2014,

(13)  The share options as at 1 January 2014 comprised the following: (i) 26,000,000 share (13)
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2013 to 1 July 2016; (i) 29,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2014 to 1 July 2017; (iii) 29,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018; and (iv) 29,500,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of share
options under (i), (i), (i) and (iv) of this note was 26,888,000, 29,500,000, 30,500,000 and
30,500,000 respectively as at 31 December 2014,

(14)  The share options comprised the following: (i) 200,000,000 share options with exercisable (14)
period from 20 June 2014 to 19 June 2015; (i) 1,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 20 June 2014 to 19 June 2017; (i) 1,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 20 June 2015 to 19 June 2018; (iv) 1,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 20 June 2016 to 19 June 2019; and (v) 1,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 June 2017 to 19 June 2020,

RZTE—NF—A—BZERESETY&E:
WTEHA-E——FNA=ZTRE=ZZ—NF
nﬂ + LB 26,000,00017 B B4« ()7TEEI R =
T-—=FhNA-tHE-_ZT-—RFHLA+IBZ
6,000,00010 BE A% #E : (iNTTEH AT —MNFE LA
ZHRAEZZT—ARFNATILHE 248000000 8
B RWITERA-Z—RAFNA=-+HEZZ
T—+F N A+ N8 23,200,000 B A% # o 7 Fi
FE)~ (i) (i) (B BREHENR _ZT—HF+=
A=+—8%BIAZH 5200,0001 4,800,000
}.3,200,00017 °

R-ZZ—NF—A—BZERESETIEE: ()
TEHAE-Z-=ZFLtA-HAE-_T—- A FtAH
—H226,000,00017 BERRAE : ()fTEH AT —MNY
FtA-ZHE-_ZT—tF+tH—H 229500000
MERE: (fTTEHA-_T—RAFEtA-_RBE_
T — \F+t A— B8 .229,500,00017 8 A% 4 : K& (v)7T
ﬁ%%*"fﬁitﬁfaﬁfifnﬁtﬂ
— B 229,500,000 f A% 48 o Z< BT 7 (1)~ (i) ~ (i) Bz (v)
B BRESRERZ-ZZ— @¢+_ﬂ_+ A5
21 526,888,00017 * 29,500,000 ~ 30,500,0001% K&
30,500,00015 ©

BREAETISE: ((TERE-T—HFEA
H*+EE*27£¢AH+h52mwmmo
BB HE Mﬁﬁ%%:?*EEﬁﬂ*+E§
ZE—tF XA+ H 21,000,000 B HE (i)
TEPAE_ZE-RFAA-tTHE-_Z— AEA
A-+78 21,000,000 BER#E: (WITHEHA=ZZ

—RNENAZTEE-Z-AEXA+HIABEZ
woooooomﬁﬂxﬁi EWITEBRAE_Z—tFE X

AZ+BE=ZZT=ZF XA+ H 210000001
AR I -

(15)  The exercise prices of the share options are as follows: (15) BREZITEENOT:
Date of Grant Exercise Price per Share (HK$)
mEBAH BRITEE (BT
02.07.2010 3.90
—ZT-ZTF+A=H
06.09.2010 415
—ZE-TFNAKH
20.09.2011 0.75
—E——FNAA=+H
02.07.2013 0.50
—T—=ftA=H
20.06.2014 0.80

—E-mFENA=+A

(16)  On 20 June 2014, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a total of (16)
237,650,000 Shares pursuant to the Scheme and the closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the aforesaid share options were granted was HK$0.7500.

46 VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED A EERER AT

RZZE—WEXNA-+B ARGREZTEE
B 4 ) AT 3R B8 A ££237,650,0008% B 15 2 fE A%
BEERY EMERERPHMZBRHDETES
0.7500 7T °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures

of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV

of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company

were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which

were required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to

be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture of the

EERTHRAIREDTREEEE
EeBRORERAROREREE Z2ER

L D
RTB

&

R-EBE—NE+-_A=+—8 ARQAIzE
ERTHRBHRART REREEE ( TF
RIEBEAEREERG ] EXVEL) 2% - 88
O REEETR BEEARBEESRBEEK
BISEXVERSE 7R By Bh A& AN QA KB X By
ZHERBRAR ( BEARRESR RITREE
BIBEFESFMBEKRIEBIESER AR EE
BHEZEERAE) M ARBRERARD
AIREZRAF M ERAELIGMFEE SR
Mz RAR  HIREAIZER ETRANE
AL 67Tl EREETEE 2 R EIRE
BHNEARNR BRIz RARNT

REAQATDRG HBEROREERZHFR

Company
Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings
as at
Number of Shares/ 31 December
underlying Shares held Number of 2014
Fiske/ HERGEE share R-ZB-m%
options held® +=A=+-H
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interest Fi Total interests Fiisit g
EEps 54 BEME BREHAC ERAE BAEAL
Personal Corporate
interests interests
BARSE NEER
Mr. LI Ning® Interest of controlled - 8,212,443,1510 -
__corporation
FEELO Rt EERS
Beneficial owner - - 6,000,000 8,218,443,151 96.70%
ERfEAA
Mr. CHAN Ling Beneficial owner 32,479,669 - 70,000,000 102,479,669 1.21%
RELE ERfEAA
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneficial owner 13,995,669 - 62,000,000 75,995,669 0.89%
X ERfEAA
Mr. CHAN James Beneficial owner - - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.18%
BB LE EREAA
Wr. LI Qilin Beneficiary of trusts 6,080,022, 7697 - -
FHELE BREX&EA
Beneficial owner - - 6,000,000 6,086,022,769 71.61%
ERBAA
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings

as at
Number of Shares/ 31 December
underlying Shares held Number of 2014
ke HERGEE share R-E-IE
options held® +=A=+-8
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interest Fifs Total interests kg
BEps &t BaME BREHEY ERAH BHABEA
Personal Corporate
interests interests
BAER L 3
Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 600,000 - 7,600,000 8,200,000 0.10%
559§ EREEA
Mr. CHEN Johnny Beneficial owner 600,000 - 7,600,000 8,200,000 0.10%
REREE EHEEA
Mr. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent Beneficial owner - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.07%
ERELE EREAA
Mr. NG Sau Kei, Wilfred Beneficial owner 3,400,000 - 7,600,000 11,000,000 0.13%
RYELE EHEEA
Notes: B 5 :

1. Mr. Li Ning is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 8,212,443,151 Shares through his

interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively, as follows:

48

2,132,420,382 Shares are held by Lead Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li
Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead;

the 2,328,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets is interested in comprise (i)
1,280,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets and (i) 1,048,560,000 Shares
which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights attaching to
the convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by the Company in November
2013. Victory Mind Assets is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited
("Ace Leader”) and 38% by Jumbo Top Group Limited (“Jumbo Top”). Al shares of
Ace Leader are held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of a
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such 2,328,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of each of Victory
Mind Assets and Ace Leader; and

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  3EALAREIZERERAF]

228 5 4 3E B A T HLead Ahead - Victory Mind Assets
K Dragon CityD Bl A AMIRIEAEE A &
8,212,443 151 BRI 19 2 #E 25

(@)

2,132,420,3820% % 15 i Lead Ahead¥ A « M
Lead Ahead A T R A R FE LR E D RIHR
60% K2 40% A% 4 ° 228 5E 4 7T /S Lead Ahead 2
B%:

Victory Mind Assets¥ 72,328,582, 769A% A% 17
T & I ()Victory Mind AssetsFT#5A 2
1,280,022, 7690 B 13 R (A AR R R = F
— =%+ — A A Victory Mind AssetsZ¥7T 2 7]
R (E % P 5 2 SR R R ST (B M Al
AE 317 2.1,048,560,0008% J% 5 © Victory Mind
Assets7> Bl B3 Ace Leader Holdings Limited ( [ Ace
Leader |) X Jumbo Top Group Limited ( [ Jumbo
Top 1) #EH57%%38% ° Ace LeaderZ EBAR 15
B TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ([TMF 1) IABIBEFEZ
RRAAFOFE -TEXRERZERZE
LAl A - E AR AR L ilt2,328,582,769
& B 15 R 3 5 R 2 o 2R 28 5k A B Victory Mind
Assets 2 Ace Leader§ B2 E S+ &
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(c) the 3,751,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is interested in comprise (i)
2,400,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (i) 1,351,440,000 Shares which
may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the Company in November 2013. Dragon
City is interested in such 3,751,440,000 Shares in its capacity as trustee of a unit
trust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by Cititrust (Cayman) Limited (*Cititrust”)
and as to 40% by Cititrust, each as the trustee of separate trust. Mr. Li Ning is the
60% shareholder of Dragon City and a founder of the unit trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 3,751,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of
Dragon City.

2. See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders and
other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.

3. As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Li Ning was also deemed to be interested in 7,242,199 LN
Shares, representing as at 31 December 2014 approximately 0.36% shareholding interest in
the share capital of Li Ning Co (which is at the date of the relevant SFO filing, an associated
corporation of the Company (within the meaning as Part XV of the SFO)) and such 7,242,199
LN Shares comprised (i) personal interests: 1,370,073 LN Shares, share options granted
on 17 January 2014 entitling to subscribe for 1,370,073 LN Shares during period from
17 January 2014 to 31 December 2018 at the exercise price of HK$7.00 per LN Share,
1,370,073 unvested restricted LN Shares and 570,860 LN Offer Securities which may be
issued to him under Li Ning Open Offer and (ii) corporate interests: 1,807,850 LN Shares held
by Alpha Talent Management Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ning) and 753,270
LN Offer Securities which may be issued to Alpha Talent Management Limited under Li Ning
Open Offer.

4, These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective Directors, the
details of which are provided in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2014, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(¢)  Dragon City#% 3,757,440,0000% A% 17 1 25 -
& # B & ()Dragon City# A 2.2,400,000,000
BES RNEEARRR—_E—=F+—A
[F1Dragon CityE 47 2 A 42 % 15 % BT I 2 B84k
T JE TR BRAT R i AT T 3 7 21,351,440,000
A% A% 17 © Dragon CitybA BRI {E 5 2 & 5E A
19+ B % 53,751,440,0000% A% 15 # =5 -
i b 3l {5 #F 2 B /A Cititrust (Cayman) Limited
([Cititrust J ) X CititrustVE BB 55T X sEAM
HEH60% K.A40% © 2= % 5T A& A +5 4 Dragon City
60%HE DS 2 BRI R BAIERE 2 AlSZ A » E It
AR B2 E3,751,440,0008% A% 15 #E 5 1
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
‘Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors”), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012,
for the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by
the issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares
and to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds”) which
are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject

to adjustment provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible
Bonds. All Initial Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares
on 6 June 2014,

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the “Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds") in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon
City in November 2013. The Earn-out Convertible Bonds are convertible into
Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share. The Vendors shall be
subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of the Earn-out Convertible
Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that certain performance
targets of LN Group are not met.

Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, his
brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, a non-executive Director. Dragon City is

the trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li
Chun and Mr. Li Qilin. Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of Mr.
Li Ning.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means

of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:

Long Positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

ERBRRREN 2R

B AR SR & P ER & O AN A B s E ] i B
X A B R R SR ELAE AT B A R R T
B ] - BEERT ML KA 43k i AR
R Bk EL A A0 B /B & B ) AR 1 ) 3 E AR AT PR B
RARHERE ZIEAEREH -

FERRRAMATREDTREZ
EBERAE

R-ZE—NMF+_A=+—H BEFH
H-BREXFIHEEZARAESHITHAES
HTEZEZRABIN AT ALTRARRIR
B &,/ SRS P HEE RSN AR GRE
BEEMHIEGHE06IEAFE 2 Bk
ERTHEARARG 2 EmRAR
REOREBROBZHEE

Approximate

percentage of

Number of Shares/ shareholdings as at

Capacity underlying Shares held 31 December 2014
R=ZF—0OF
s, +=-—HA=+—H
565 HEROZEE FERESLNEIL
Substantial Shareholders
FERR
Mr. LI Chun Interest of controlled corporation 8,212,443,1511 96.63%
LA REGEEER
Lead Ahead? Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382 25.09%
ExREBA
Victory Mind Assets® Beneficial owner 2,328,582,769 27.40%
EmBEAA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 2,328,582,769 27.40%
XA E R
Jumbo Top®® Interest of controlled corporation 2,328,582,769 27.40%
R A E R
TMF® Trustee 2,328,5682,769 27.40%
ZFEA
Dragon City® Trustee 3,751,440,000 44.14%
XEEA
Cititrust® Trustee 3,751,440,000 44.14%
ZEEA
Other Persons
H AL
Mr. MA Chi Seng Beneficial owner 560,000,000 6.59%
BEKLEE EmBEAA
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li Chun is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 8,212,443,151 Shares through his

interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively, as follows:

2,132,420,382 Shares are held by Lead Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li
Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun;

the 2,328,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets is interested in comprise (i)
1,280,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets and (i) 1,048,560,000 Shares
which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by the Company in November 2013.
Victory Mind Assets is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top. All
shares of Jumbo Top are held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust.
Mr. Li Chun is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
2,328,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of the trust and is also therefore
deemed to be interested in such 2,328,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is also a director
of each of Victory Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

the 3,751,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is interested in comprise (i)
2,400,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (ii) 1,351,440,000 Shares which
may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the Company in November 2013. Dragon
City Is interested in such 3,751,440,000 Shares in its capacity as trustee of a unit
trust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by Cititrust and as to 40% by Cititrust,
each as the trustee of a separate trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of one of the said
separate trusts and is also therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,751,440,000
Shares. Mr. Li Chun is taken to be interested in 40% of the shares of Dragon City and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,751,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is a
director of Dragon City.

2. Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li
Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.
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3. See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”
and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double counting, it should be noted that Ace
Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be interested in the 2,328,582,769 Shares which
Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

4. See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”
and note 1(c) above. Cititrust is deemed to be interested in the 3,751,440,000 Shares which
Dragon City is interested in.

5. Mr. Ma Chi Seng is interested in 500,000,000 Shares and the share options of the Company
entitling to subscribe for a total of 60,000,000 Shares.

As at 31 December 2014, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s paolicy
to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for
measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with specific
performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing
basis and a formal evaluation is conducted once a year to review employees’
overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary
review would be based on individual's performance and subject to Group’s
discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The existing share option scheme was adopted by the Company in 2010 as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants, details of the scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 47 to 46 of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 55 to 64 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Chan Ling whose biographical
details are set out on page 33 of this annual report. The company secretary of
the Company is Mr. Ho Kim Ching. Mr. Ho has over 12 years of experience in
accounting and finance industry. He is a certified public accountant of the United
States and a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders and their
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was a
sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

During the year 2013, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company and
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the Board to fill in such casual
vacancy. PricewaterhouseCoopers offered themselves for re-appointment as
auditors of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
9 June 2014 and such re-appointment was approved by the Shareholders at that
meeting. Save as disclosed above, there has been no other changes of auditors in
the past three years.

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have

been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Li Ning
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save for
the disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the role of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise and insight of
the sports field, having these two roles performed by Mr. Li enables more effective
and efficient overall business planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies of the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals and adequate independent element in the composition
of the Board, with one-third of them being independent non-executive Directors.

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group's affairs and activities
with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value. There

is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the management.
Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the Board while
decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group's strategic policies, major
investment and funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group's
operations.

The Board currently comprises of three executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), three non-executive Directors (the “Non-executive Directors”) and
three independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive
Directors”). The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies to pursue
opportunities along the sports value chain.

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr.

Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred. The Independent Non-
executive Directors help the management to formulate the Group's development
strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports

in strict compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains
appropriate system to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
The Company received the annual confirmation from the Independent Non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or

via telephone conference facilities. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performance and review the financial results of the Group. Additional
Board meetings may be convened for considering and approving other significant
matters. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to the
number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely, the
audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the

general meeting of the Company held during the year 2014 and the attendance of

each Director are set out in the following table:

EEeENERRRANR _T—NFHEITZ
%%A&Amiéﬁ@( HEZZ B g ([F%
ZBel) FHZEe(IHHEES])
REZ \@(Fk%éﬁﬁh&ﬁﬁi

/|

([HTEER])) 2 8 HRBUARBEA
CEHERNREEELEERRN TS

Meetings held in 2014
RZB-MEET28R

Annual
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Executive General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
RE
EZe ENZEY ¥HWzEe REZEE HTEEE BEXE
Number of meetings eENY 6 4 1 1 5 1
Executive Directors HTEE
M. Li Ning (Chaiman & FERL
Chief Executive Officerf (FRHRTHAER) 6/6 1/1 55 17
M- Chan Ling (Chief Operating Offcer) RELE (£EEH) 6/6 17 5/5 17
W Li Chunyang XD i 5/6 465 111
Non-executive Directors FHTES
M. Chan James it BEE 6/6 1/1
W Li Qlin? FHBEE 6/6 171
Wi Ma Wing Man BICULE 6/6 4/4 17
Independent Non-executive Directors B FH{TES
M. Chen Johnny ﬁ% R 5/6 44 17 17 11
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent RIERHE 4/6 4/4 n n
Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred 5&’?%%% 6/6 4/4 1 11 "
Notes: P 3E -
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director is 1. HEABEESEREFE 2 S FREEZS

entitled to attend.

2. Mr. Li Qilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an

Executive Director.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the
legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the vear,
the Company has provided to the Directors with materials on directors’ duties,
corporate governance, updates on laws and regulations and professional
management skills and also arranged training on compliance of the GEM Listing
Rules, including a seminar on the amendments to the GEM Listing Rules in

EPA/N &

2. FEBEERIRE THAHRRNTESTTES
HEZET-

EECHREXRR
ARABBEE2RARIERERE
BRESHAZEARAR TZ&@&%M%E
ET2EE-RFER ARARREFRHES
MESZBE CXER SINERERIA
REXEERREZME TREZENSNE
BASBRBETAERR EMRZEI B2
EAEBAER LTRAN T —NFHRH
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the year 2014 relating to connected transactions, to the Directors and senior
management for continuous professional development of their knowledge and
skills in performance of their functions.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:

BRPZEFZHTE EERERERE
THREEITRBE 2 A S b e -

AABFEEFEXBI 28 -2FEMm
FEERFARRIATHEMEINE
Ko R B A Re S AR

Other business/

management/
Corporate professional
Governance Regulatory skills
Hit¥%
34
TEER EEER BHEHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chist Executive Officer) TREE (FEFTEEE) v v/ v
Mr. Chan Ling (Chisf Operating Officer) BRELAE (ZELH) v 4 v
Mr. Li Chunyang THEBGEE v v v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan James PRt Bk A& v v v
Mr. Li Qilin BT A v/ v v/
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk L v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Chen Johnny REREE v/ v v
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BRIELEE v/ v/ v
Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred RTFEEE v/ v/ v
Directors’ Securities Transactions EEETESFRS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the "Required Standard”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed compliance with the Required Standard during the year ended
31 December 2014,

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Required
Standard. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company reviews the
extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company's affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential new
Directors and recommends to the Board for decision. The current Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman and Executive Director. The
other members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Ng
Sau Kei, Wilfred, both are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Under the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders every three years. A
Director appointed by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after his appointment in case of the appointment of
additional Director or at the first general meeting after his appointment in case of
filling of casual vacancy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial for
the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement
set out in Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code with effect from 12 August 2013
and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. With

the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee’s role was
expanded to include monitoring the implementation of the policy and review the
same as appropriate.
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Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity Policy
The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition on
behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In
designing and reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider from a number of aspects. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives, including gender, age, professional background, business
experience, length of service and directorship with other listed companies. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board possessed a balance of skill and
expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will
review the appropriateness of skills, experience and diversity of the Board to the
development of the Company's business from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Chen Johnny and one Executive
Director, Mr. Chan Ling.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of

the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
determined the fringe benefit of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Chan Ling and Mr. Li Chunyang.
The primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and implement
business strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations of Group
companies and approve matters relating to their day-to-day operations.

The Executive Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include the development and review of the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management
and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of
the Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
internal control procedures, annual reports, financial statements, half-year reports
and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chen Johnny (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lien Jown
Jing, Vincent and Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma
Wing Man. This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the quarterly
reports, half-year report and annual report before submission to the Board. The
financial controller of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings in
order to give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and (i) the internal audit plan and reports.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Kim Ching has been appointed by the Board as the company secretary of
the Company since June 2010. During the year, he has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policy and applied them consistently, approved
adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments and
estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial reporting are set
out in the independent auditors’ report on page 65 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the total fee paid and payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and other services for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014, amounted to HK$3,029,000 and HK$946,000
respectively. The sum for other services included HK$846,000 for the review

of the Group’s interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the
quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March 2014 and the nine months
ended 30 September 2014 and HK$100,000 for tax services.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and effective internal
control system of the Group and has established the Group’s internal control
policies and procedures for monitoring the internal control system.

The internal control system of the Group is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance with
relevant legislations and regulations. The management and various departments
conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control
policies and procedures. The Group has engaged an external professional
consultancy company to assess the internal control risks which may arise from
the Group’s operation. Besides, the Board reviews at least annually the overall
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.

Based on the reviews performed by the management and comment from the
external auditors and the Audit Committee, the Board is of the view that the
Group's internal control system is adequate for the year ended 31 December
2014, The Board will continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls
by considering reviews to be performed by the Audit Committee, executive
management, auditors and external professional consultant that the Group may
engage.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and for
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company’s articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company’s articles
of association.

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company'’s corporate website www.vivachina.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address: Room 3602—06, 36/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 37961111

Fax: 37961100

The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders” enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Communication with Shareholders

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 9 June 2014 (the
2014 AGM"). A notice convening the 2014 AGM contained in the circular dated
28 March 2014 was despatched to the Shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2013. The Chairman of the Board and members of the committees of the
Company (as appropriate) attended the 2014 AGM to answer the questions from
the Shareholders. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditors of the Company,
attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. The Chairman explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions proposed at the 2014 AGM, including (i) the adoption of the
audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and the auditors

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013; (i) the re-election

of certain Directors and the authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’
remunerations; (i) the re-appointment of auditors of the Company and the
authorisation to the Board to fix their remuneration; and (iv) the granting to
Directors the general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares, were passed by
the Shareholders by way of poll. The poll results of the 2014 AGM were published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Changes in the Constitutional Documents
There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year 2014,

A notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched together with the Annual Report 2014 to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
CG Code.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  3EALAREIZERERAF]

BERRZ2BE

ARRER -ZE—WFRNANARITHRRE
BERg([ZT—NFRRBEFAg])-
AR —MFE=A -+ N\BZBEHAH
ZAR—E-NERRAFAG2REEE
AT =—FFEREFETHRR-BEFS
TEMRARAIEZEEZRE (MER)D
HE T -—NFERRBFRAGUBEERRZ
TR - ANARZINEAZ BN 7B KBk B g At
MEBAEHE T —HUFRREFAEGIN
BEBBETER REZBERELER
B ST RZBENE LM ZRH - EF
FRBRETRERRAZFMARER -

2
R-E-NERRBEFAGLREZME
RER BRIFMBE-_T—=F1-A4
=t ALEFEZREZUBHRER LA AT
EFgREZEMRE: (1BEBETES
REREEEETESME : ()BBAQA
TEMEEEEEEETEMNS  RVERT
EE-REBABRTLRBLORD HEER
RUBRERRGTA BB T MNFRRE
FREZBRERARZGERCTIERE TR
LN/ I SR

ABERIHRE
R-B—MER - AR 2 ASSEET
EEAEE -

ARABEEBRRIBE KRG 2 BTSN
R R AR BB BB IRIEA LR Z A
ERAMREREATRAINIEANITZER
TEREF-_ZF-HNFFERETETER
o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT »
R Gl Sl

.
pwec

To the Shareholders of Viva China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Viva China Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit, and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

i PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F.
Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888
F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT »
18 3 1% BUED ¥R 5 >

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME »
GeBEmkHtEERER>

—OE+ZA=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—-F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FER FHET
Revenue g 5 111,418 125,162
Cost of sales $4 € B AR (100,201) (104,640)
Gross profit E R 11,217 20,522
Other revenue and other net income/(l0ss) H b U zs M E A FW A
(E#E) 5 15,608 109,178
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEAXS (34,223) (31,212)
Administrative and other operating expenses THREEMEEER (155,169) (138,230)
Impairment of goodwil EESNEEE 17 - (269,758)
Fair value loss on derivative financial liabilities ITEMBREAFEEE 27 - (156,000)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 6 (968) (264)
Share of profits and losses of an associate anda D HEEE AT N E L E
joint venture 28 R K g8 19 (299,510) (179,999)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIEE 7 (463,045) (645,763)
Income tax iR 10 801 4,570
Loss for the year FRER (462,244) (641,193)
Other comprehensive income/(l0ss): Hitn 2wk~ (ES}E) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HEREN DI
profit or loss, net of income tax of nil Bam 2 EE
?/J/Zfﬁﬁ F fi ( )
— Share of other comprehensive 15 /N
income of an associate ﬁﬂiﬁ
I 25 3 218
— Reclassification adjustment upon sale of —HE Fﬁ% A F
subsidiaries E%ﬁ é% = (265) =
— Exchange differences on translation of —REE W%ﬁ%z
foreign operations E X =& (76,039) 93,878
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the FREMZEKE
year, net of tax (B5]) > NKRHE (76,301) 94,096
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEBREE (538,545) (547,097)
Loss attributable to: DTATEMLER:
— Equity shareholders of the Company VNN 7*&:&11‘&? 11 (462,176) (640,919
— Non-controlling interests —FEEIR = (68) (274)
(462,244) (641,193)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: BT A :t EEEEEE
W
— Equity shareholders of the Company $ Al IR R (538,432) (546,863)
— Non-controlling interests — FE AR 2 (113) (234)
(538,545) (547,097)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE OB1) 12 (6.20) (10.70)

The notes on pages 75 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements.

SEISEEFVRAME 2 Wi RZEMER

=2 EECER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION »

e B AR 3R >

As of 31 December 2014 HE-_E—WNFE+_-_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- B K& E
Investment properties "EYE
Prepaid land lease payments A b & FRIE
Goodwill 5k
Interests in an associate and E’\Eﬁz E/NE]|
a joint venture ﬁé%Z*&ﬁT’i
Deposits and other receivables Tﬁ@&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ”&?ﬂﬁ
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE
Total non-current assets SEMBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories TE
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 IR
Prepayments, deposits and ENRE ek
other receivables H th & Uk 58
Derivative financial asset PTHETEEE
Pledged deposit AR 1F R
Cash and bank balances e MIRITE
Assets of a disposal group classified DERFIELEZ
as held-for-sale HEHBEE
Total current assets MEEELE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B8 558
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERESER
Receipts in advance TEUFRIA
Bank and other loans $R7 &,H\ﬂﬂg%’\
Income tax payable FERFTIS R
Liabilities of a disposal group classified DERFIELNEZ
as held-for-sale HEHRRZEE
Total current liabilities mEaEERE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHAERABDERS
NET ASSETS EEFE

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

Notes

B £

14
15
16
17

19
22
28

20
21

22
27
23
23

24
25

26

HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TR
58,356 63,532
221,177 226,176
21,031 21,993
2,674,070 3,018,078
7,528 1,617
8,138 7,507
2,990,300 3,338,903
11,852 14,419
89,855 34,425
337,739 167,805
- 61,000

5,007 19,200
578,434 827,530
1,022,887 1,114,379
- 7,278
1,022,887 1,121,657
28,879 21,232
50,315 36,874
8,155 11,987
5,007 12,929
47,802 48,910
140,158 131,932
- 3,370
140,158 135,302
882,729 986,355
3,873,029 4,325,258
3,873,029 4,325,258




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION »
RE IR R >

As of 31 December 2014 B EZE =T —WF+-_A=+—H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Gk T T
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of 7S 2 7] # %5 % 3R FE (L fE 25
the Company
Issued capital BB TR AR 29 424,935 303,820
Perpetual convertible bonds KA M AR R & 31 1,139,046 2,094,526
Reserves & 8 32(a) 2,309,053 1,924,456
3,873,034 4,322,802
Non-controlling interests EERER (5) 2,456
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,873,029 4,325,258
Li Ning Chan Ling
= PR 2
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
FREFITHAEZ HITEFHFEEHLH

The notes on pages 75 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements. FHBEEFIREMB 2T AZET B R
RZHEKE D -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION »
B 7% AR 2R >

As of 31 December 2014 BE T —ME&E+ - A=+—H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- B K& E 14 676 1,275
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZZE 18 2,940,320 3,509,649
Deposits oA 22 1,617 1,617
Total non-current assets EMBEELRE 2,942,613 3,512,541
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries JE W it B 2 R 5RIB 18 557,295 712,992
Derivative financial asset PTEMEEE 27 - 61,000
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE Ee Xk
other receivables H th & Uk 58 22 193,820 1,144
Pledged deposit AR 1F R 23 5,007 19,200
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 23 392,142 291,645
Total current assets MEEERE 1,148,264 1,085,981
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Due to subsidiaries FE KB AR FKIEB 18 254,356 249,876
Other payables and accruals Hith {5 TE R B R E A 25 6,081 4,229
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 260,437 254,105
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 887,827 831,876
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHAERABERE 3,830,440 4,344,417
NET ASSETS EERE 3,830,440 4,344,417
EQUITY =
Issued capital B EBITIRA 29 424,935 303,820
Perpetual convertible bonds KA M ] AR & 5 31 1,139,046 2,094,526
Reserves f#1E 32(b) 2,266,459 1,946,071
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 3,830,440 4,344,417
Li Ning Chan Ling
Z 8 PR 2
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
FEFITHAAE HITEFFLBLH
The notes on pages 75 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements. FILEE BB EZH T AZE Y 53R
KBS -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY »

mE \@Ji‘% >

Year ended 31 December 2014 & &= —

At T Janvary 2013

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(los) for the year:
Exchange differences on translaton of foreign operations
Share of other comprenensive income of an associete

R=Z-=%-8-A

ERER

ERApRERE/ (BR):
REENXH/E R
AaBERAZAb2ERE

Total comprefensive incomef(oss) for the year

155t of shares

Share issug expenses

Issue of perpetual convertble bonds

Share of associate’s resenve:

Fauty-seted share option arangements

Transter of share aption reserve upon the forfeiture or
expiry of share options

Lk e VAT E
EGL Ul

ORI
FTAAET AR B
NEBELFRRE
NREGT 2 BRER R
RERERR KRR
ERERERR

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014

Loss for the year

(ther comprehensive income/[loss) for the year:
Exchange differences on translaton of foreign operations
Share of other comprenensive income of an associete
Reclassification adjustment upon sale of subsidiaries

RZE-Z£4+-f=+-AR
“Z-R¥-A-A

EREE

FREMRERE/ (BE):
BERNERERZE
AMBERARZ AR ANS
HERBATRENHEAE

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Conversion of perpetual convertble bonds

I55ug of unfsted warrants

Exercise of share option

Fquty-setfed share aption aangements

(her reserve released upon disposal of a subsidiary

Transfer of share aption reserve upon the forfeiture or
expiry of share options

Share of associale’s reserve

Release of non-contrling inerests uon dispesal of
a subsidary

FREAERLER
ERAAETAR B

Rk LmARER
IERRE

NRELT  BRER
HERBRARAL, ZbkR
IEBERS R
aRBRERR
AEBELTRRE

HEHBATR AL EERER

At 31 December 2014

RZZ-BETZA=1-A

*

Notes
Mzt

31a)

30fa)

—OE+ZA=+—HLEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAIRERREL
Share ~ Perpetual Unlisted Share  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  convertible  warrants option ~ fluctuation Reserve Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
kL%
KAk 2RAR EX3 )

BETRE RHMEER TRRES i BRERR R BEEE AHRE 25EE £ FERER REEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 Hk$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
TEr  Tér  TEr  TER  TAr  TEx  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr TEn TER
29820 2,864,804 935,480 - 52,503 8216 1,281 (1671) (106134 3455299 2690 3467,989
- - - - - - - - 919 (s40919) (erey 641193

= = = = = 93,838 - - - 93,638 40 93878

- - - - - 218 - - - 218 - 218

- - - - - 94,056 = - 640919 (546,863 (234 (3d7.097)
24,000 216,000 - - - - - - - 240000 - 20000
- 324) - - - - - - - (324 - 324)

- - 1130046 - - - - - - 1130046 - 1139048

- - - - 5584 - - - - 5,584 - 5584

- - - - 30,060 - - - - 30,060 - 30,060

- - - - (3403 - - - 3403 - - -
303820 3,080,480 2,094,526 - saTar 102,212 1,281 (1671 (1,342,650) 4,322,802 245 4325258
- - - - - - - - (462,176 (462,176) (68)  (462,244)

- - - - - (75,994) - - - (75,994) (45)  (76,039)

- - - - - - - - 3 - 3

- - - - - (265) - - - (265) - (265)

- - - - - (76,256) - - (462176 (538,432 (113)  (538,545)
120,000 835,480 (995,480) - - - - - - - - -
- - - 5993 - - - - - 5993 - 5,993
1,115 17926 - - (2.844) - - - - 16,197 - 16,197
- - - - 49,968 - - - - 49,968 - 49,968

- - - - - - - 1,671 (1,671) - - -

- - - - (1,716) - - - 1,716 - - -

- - - - 16,506 - - - - 16,506 - 16,506

- - - - - - - - - - (2,348) (2,348)
424935 3933886 1,139,046 5003 146,656* 2,016* 1,281 - (1,804781) 3,873,034 (5) 3873029

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,309,053,000

(2013: HK$1,924,456,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 75 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements.

- ZERBEEEEESAMBERRAERA
2R A FE#2,309,053,0008 T (ZE— =4
1,924,456,000% 7T ) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS »
n‘/_ﬁ/\iﬁrﬁ/}lbgﬁ >

Year ended 31 December 2014 B E—E—WE+_—_A=+—BIFE

72

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETHHRERE
Loss before tax bR 5 BB 1B (463,045) (645,763)
Adjustments for: I
Finance costs B R K AR 6 968 264
Share of profits and losses of an associate DIEHENRIREE D
and a joint venture 2w & B 1R 19 299,510 179,999
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBARZERE
FEE 5 2,957 -
Other income an profit guarantee BEuEMNRE
H h 4g A (342) —
Interest income A B U A 5 (15,841) (9,320)
Fair value loss on derivative financial liabilities MTEMBBEE
NEEEE 27 - 156,000
Fair value gain on investment properties "EWMHE 2 AN FENE 15 (64) (6,446)
Fair value gain on derivative financial asset MTHEUBEE
AT AEF o7 - (62,543)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, LEME  BE REZE
plant and equipment BEHZER/(FIH) 7 478 (160)
Depreciation e 14 7,079 6,505
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEAS £ 70 & IR 5 16 467 313
Amortisation of other intangible assets E@ﬁﬁ/éﬁﬁﬁﬁ - 4,897
Write-back of inventories ta net realisable value BOoGFEEE=r 25 FE 7 - (895)
Unrealised underwriting profit AERB fﬁ P ﬂ - 4,697
Derecognition of warrant 1R TR AR AR R - (62)
Impairment of goodwil Fﬁ%m@ 17 - 269,758
(Reversal of impairment af)/ Hibizs CRERR),
impairment of ather deposits B (10) 13
Impairment of other intangible assets HEMEEEERE 7 - 9,537
Equity-settled share option expenses ARt E 2
i AR B 2 30 49,968 30,060
(117,875) (63,146)
Increase in inventories FEEM (5,214) (13,524)
Increase in trade receivables JE W 2 5 5 IE 3 N (55,465) (16,267)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfT A ?ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂ
deposits and other receivables FEW R IR AL, ($EA0) 9,327 (9,489)
Increase in long-term deposits paid Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ K38 0 - (648)
Increase in trade payables FEfTE B R IE N 7,647 5815
Increase in other payables and accruals HAth B < 508 K
FE=t & A 14,295 3,392
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance B R IE OB ) /10 (3,832) 1,249
Increase in an amount dug to P& FE 4% IR A 1
a non-controlling equity holder hﬁ/\ R IE AN - 881
Profit guarantee received B2 s A 1% 27 61,342 39,721
Cash used in operations ZEEBFARE (89,775) (52,016)
Income tax paid BEMATER - =
Net cash flows used in operating activities LB EFTA
REemEFE (89,775) (52,016)

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS »

MERERER>

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —MNFE+_—_A=+—HI-FE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
[nterest received

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

Advance to a joint venture
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of convertible securities of an associate

Direct transaction costs attributable to the
acquisition of an associate

Direct transaction costs attributable to issue of
perpetual convertible bonds

Return of deposit paid for acquisition of
a land use right

Additions to investment properties

Refund of advance payment received from
an independent third party

Loan advance to an associate

REFHZHERE
R EYS)

BEYE BWELREBERB

& B B8 2 7
FTSIRE#8

A& &b E 2 BR
HEWE BB &

R BIA B TSR
W E A2

] HA B RE 25
WS NRIEEZ
BEERXHRA
BATK AR RAE Z
EEZEEREZXFHRA
iR IR B W R L 3th (50 PR
X zEE
BN B R

REBBYFE=FANKIEA

B FHERRZER

Release of the pledged deposit fERRIK IR IR S

Deposits pledged with banks DHEBTFRITZER

Loan advance to a joint venture partner BN TFEEBHEZER

Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEBMAZ
REeEREFHE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®BEFEH - BERE

Interest paid B F A

New bank and other loans

Repayment of bank loan and other loan
Proceeds from exercise of share options

Net proceeds from placing of unlisted warrants

Proceeds from issue of new ordinary shares

HEVIRTT R E B 5K

BEERTERREMER

1T BB A HE 2 P 1S 3R IR
FLEIF EMRREREZ
P15 SRR H 88

BT E B Z TS RA

Share issue expenses &R TR
Net cash flows from financing activities BB EEFTS
REMEFHE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5T FHxT AT
10,293 8,679

14 (3,745) (7,271)
6,184 -

19 (5,911) -
- 160

19 - (513,656)
19 - (2,186)
31 - (954)
- 230,000

15 (60) (921)
- (127,000)

22 (187,500) -
14,193 127,000

23 - (19,200)
22 (5,911) -
(172,457) (305,349)

6 (968) (264)
- 12,828

(7,689) (744)

16,197 -

34 5,993 -
- 240,000

- (324)

13,533 251,496
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS »
GEBRETRERY

Year ended 31 December 2014 B E—E—WE+_—_A=+—BIFE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkASEEY
EQUIVALENTS B R (248,699) (105,869)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FYReMAEEEY
— Cash and bank balance as stated in the statement — R FE AR KR FIER 2
of financial position He MIBITE 827,530 932,409
~ Cash and bank balance attributable to a disposal  — ) B & #51F & Z
group classified as held for sale HEBREEZ
Re MIBITE 196 502
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net AN [ & '*:""EJJZ%L R (593) 684
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESNRBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 578,434 827,726
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HEeREEZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS A DA
Cash and bank balances [ e RIRITHEH 23 85,789 226,074
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of W EERRE LR =M@ A K
less than three months when acquired E|HA 2 FEH 1R E BRTF 3K 23 492,645 601,456
Cash and bank balances as stated in the statement 7 BF 755k 00 % 51 BR 2
of financial position He RIBITE 23 578,434 827,530
Cash and bank balances attributable to DERFIELE Z
a disposal group classified as held-for-sale HEBNEEAZ
e MIRITHE R 13 - 196
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RREMERIEEZ
in the statement of cash flows HeNREEZEY 578,434 827,726

The notes on pages 75 to 142 are an integral part of these financial statements. F758 3%1425 Fr e 2 MY 5 B 5% & B 75 3R
RZHEKE D -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE I

31 December 2014 — T —F+=-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

° production and distribution of sports content, management and marketing
of sports talents and provision of sports consultancy services;

o property development for sales and investment, research and development,
manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction materials, development of
communities and provision of consultancy and subcontracting services; and

° development, manufacturing, marketing and installation of energy-saving air
conditioning systems and water heating equipment.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co") is an associated company of the Group,
whose principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture, sale
and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (“HKFRSs").
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

Disposal group held for sale is stated at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.3. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the GEM Listing Rules.

These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 and 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@ New and amended Standaras adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards and amendments
to standards which are relevant to the Group’s operations and are mandatory for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2014:

Amendment to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendment to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

Amendment to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

The adoption of above new standards and amendments to standards does not
have any significant financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014 are not material to the Group.

(b)  New standaras and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following are standards and amendments to existing standards that have been
published and are relevant and mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning after 1 January 2014 or later periods, but have not been early adopted
by the Group.
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Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RTH B zEBE
ZEHBEEX
Amendments to HKAS19, Defined benefit plans: BB ST ERIE195 (BFT) - 1 July 2014
Employee contributions REEHGEE EEHHK —E—NFE+A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle BB REER —F—FF 1 July 2014
EE——FRAMFENE —T—NFtLA—AH
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle BRYBREER —F——1F 1 July 2014
EE—-FAHFENE —T—NFLA—AH
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of & 76 B 76 R &5 #E Bl 85 115% 1 January 2016
interests in joint operations (1B8R]) " WEAEXKED —E—XE—HF—H
2 BE R E
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle BEEMBRELERN T —=_FF 1 January 2016
“E-NFREBFERE —E—-R"F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS16 and HKAS38, Clarification of ~ BA G ER|F165K R EB S5 1 January 2016
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation R385 (185]) BB —E—XE—HF—H
WERBIHENAEZEX T X
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers BN mEERIFE 1558 1 January 2017
HEFE& 4.2 e —E—+F¥—A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BB R E LRI FESR - 1 January 2018
BBETA 22— N\F—A—H
The Group will apply the above new/revised standards and amendments to B EHE] ST R R R 2 AERT £

standards when they become effective. The Group is in the process of making an B ANEBEBEBHEERES] - K&
assessment of the impact of the above new/revised standards and amendments to IEERE BT ISR R R 2R 2 &
standards and does not expect that the adoption of these new/revised standards SR E BIBEARN EatHe] B R &

and amendments to standards will result in any material impact on the Group’s BIRERZ BT EHASENEERMK
results and financial position. R ER R E R E -

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new BEo - ARBFTE B R FHED] ($£622F ) 5358
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from - ZIGHEIE BB IRE RFEF] BT
the Company's first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in RARREZZT—NF=A=Azz&HAR
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of MEEYERFEEE ANEBEIEFGHAE
making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Companies B EE TR HAERITE AR RIEAE (F
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial 622F ) B R E LA M BRRBNNF
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Z-HRMGERATETIREAN EX
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and only REMBHREREINEEEEH TESZ I
the presentation and the disclosure of information in the consolidated financial Zo

statements will be affected.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as

a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]

BN
w
H
i
I
il'lt
e
v
o
i

S

I T g <20 N\ 6 ) 0>

i Sy I 0| I
[
=
ﬁ
H
—:ﬁ

arw\ﬁ
ﬂﬂ}
km%
:|'/-\
)
o

N BB
~—
o
i)
o\
R
Bl B\
o,
\mi} i )0
N
e

=
il
v
B
&
ot K
H¥
i
e

NN S i 8 =
&
BN

M
B
oy o+
=R
it
op
N
s

R -
Ay oEEREATEEEE ik
7 R A AR B R B S
B ATE HERBRERAREBR Y
B AMAEREE2ATE KEHE
AR IS5 o A5 A G 2 7T 3

=5
'

 BED A
D) &

7

RIEBENRAEZBERIARE V5%
WEAHZAFEFE-

7 5 (8] 427 18] ol W s A 2 - RERR S BB 0 B {E
GEREYS R G VL ER e o B
h%ﬁ@%m.l@fﬁﬁﬁA =bg
RO EERNFEE ATRA i@i&

REHEHEED DGRBS ISR FEE
mﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁi°#ﬁk% m%ﬁ

i 4HLAK B 0 12 B
3E 8 B R R AR U A ﬁﬂ.ﬁr%

—'—u-I_E ©

i %55 5 B0

>_§DII
:a??a?t
% m
Tir 4ot
E
D/
_H
@
Al
w
i ?»tﬂi

DB BCERC AT TR A

Z USRI B %%ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ

EERNKBEYPZAFE RABEHME
EEZEMRSEHERINIBENHER -

HWEL K TER 2 EMRARERKER
IR NP ERR - WMIXAKERIBLS A
ERUBTANGENXARE Hﬁ%%%m
AT R B35 M SRS - AR A FEAE D

$@W@@FEA%E&%%%E@£@W

HEEE o kAR B IEE BB REER
SRR BB A o BB W ok

AlGtE - DB RER 2 SRR EI EEINE
B MEREENERT AR

PR (E RN IETT 2 ERIIEER
B R M LR A 2 R UHE 5 i 2 W iE
BN EBAMIEBRA #RIEERFE R
FEZEBHDARSEE -MABEAE-
FREERIEERESE REFE 2 AR
Z A DRI B AR EEFE L A
B (BLREEBEMS) AERERNER

=7) o
e

EENAFNRS EHREEEAFERS
ZREHIHEE T AU R BB BB T
Y- B A NEE HBAFM2H 2
BE T XA EAEE Y S RE— K -

H

\

=
=



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Separale Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised

at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill,

It the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group'’s reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the profit or 10ss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any
difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the
net fair value of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if;

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

(i has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(viily a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close family members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold
improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and

motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it
is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposed groups
held for sale”.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% t0 5%
Shorter of remaining lease term or 20%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

7.5% to 33'/3%
9% to 33'/5%
9% 10 25%

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held for long term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties

are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset.

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment
property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation
gain or loss in ‘other net income/(loss)’. Any gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets (or Disposal groups) held-for-sale and aiscontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amounts is to be recovered principally through a sales transaction
and a sale is considered highly probable. The non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), (or disposal groups), are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates) and investment properties, which are classified as
held for sale would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented in
the profit or loss, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair
value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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Intangible assets

(@)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUS"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets

are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. It not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

The principal annual rates used for the amortisation are as follows:

Trademarks 10%
Sports-related business contracts Qver the contract terms
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Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready
to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.
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(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables’, ‘prepayments, deposits and other receivables’, ‘pledged deposit” and
‘cash and bank balances’ in the statement of financial position (Notes 21, 22 and
23).

(c)  Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
fransaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the profit
or loss as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an “loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of

the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments of the Group include contingent consideration

in connection with the acquisition of subsidiaries and an associate and share
warrants issued by the Company. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss.

Perpetual Convertible Bonas

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to
convert these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to
adjustments as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual
Convertible Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are
freated as equity instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average cost method for construction materials
and first-in-first-out method for air-conditioners and ventilation systems and

air purifiers. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(@)  Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@)  from sports events and competitions produced or organised, when the
events and competitions are completed;

(b)  from sports talent management and marketing services and consultancy
services, when services are rendered or on a time apportionment basis in
accordance with the agreements or contracts entered into with sponsors and
clients;

(c)  rental income, on a straight line basis over the lease terms;

(d)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold; and

(e) interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When

a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to

its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options or shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.
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Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
translation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the translations. Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising

on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before

1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date
of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

BB

W ERILEEFEREE (RFTERK
FEBAHREAEKHECEE) BEERE
MZ—REFEBEXRATIFFAZTEELZ
MARN BEZEFEEERB EAERERZ
HEHER AL -

BREAERBERXZHERE ZRER
BB ERATIBEABERBERERNZE
ERAPI

FIBEMEERARELEHEH-

Sh E p &

@ IhEERIEHEE

AP ERMEABITEY BT AEARAZY
BELEREE AEBETSERAITARTE
HIge % mMISEBYBHRRAZIELEY
N EREEMELTBEERENEE ([T
BEEM )=

b) X5 REH
FANIINEZZRRH A 2 IMEERBE o
MONEBSHERM BB E K B A TH RN S 5
RZINEERBE - R BIEL AR EMM 2 E
W ER R BINEIREFRZIINEEE
Sh - FE R W st M RN RS ER -

ONEHEIRBE LR AT EZIFEREER
BE RARZBEZINEERIE - N
FHERAFEIGZFEBEERAG &
R ERFEERZINESERRE -

BINERS 2 FRETHIRER 5 A 2 SNEE =4
EZERMEBETT - WHIMNK T ZRE
(BREHN_ZZERF—A—BHH &R
WRENBIEBMEEZEE)RREHR
ZWHERME LSBT -MELEZENEZR
PO EL 2 [ U 2 P e R S B S R IR B 3
Bz ERB - EHR_TETAF—HA—AZ
Al FT R B0 8 N SR TS P EE A 2 P B R B ~%
BINEE R ERZNEERBE -

RHEEBINEBE BZBINRBEAR R
FHER ZREAERRLE 2 a M kBRI
EREREARS-

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

93



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
B 5 R AR MY AT >

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+=-HA=+—H

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(iy  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i)~ income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are reclassified
to profit or 10ss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company's equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed amount of cash for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments are equity instruments.
The net proceeds received from the issue of warrants are recognised in equity
(warrant reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium accounts upon the exercise of the warrants.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and
has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made
on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not quality as an investment property.
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Estimation uncertainty

Notes 15, 17, 19, 27, 28, 30, and 31 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to estimation of fair value of investment
properties, impairment of goodwill, interests in an associate and a joint venture,
derivative financial instruments, deferred tax assets, fair value of share options
granted and advanced issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds, other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

() Impairment of non-financial assets (other than gooadwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in note 2.3. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Both
calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the recoverable amounts of assets,
various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated with the non-
current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital expenditure and
working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to be revised,
and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of operations or financial
position.

(i) Depreciation

The Group’s management exercises its judgement in estimating the useful lives
of the depreciable assets. The estimated useful lives reflect the management’s
estimate of the periods the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered and
the Group is organised into three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a)  the sports-related business segment engages in the production and
distribution of sports content, management and marketing of sports talents and
provision of sports consultancy service;

(b)  the community development segment engages in property development
for sales and investment, research and development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of construction materials, development of communities and provision of
consultancy and subcontracting services; and

(c)  the green energy business segment engages in the development,
manufacturing, marketing and installation of energy-saving air conditioning
systems and water heating equipment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax. The
adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
or loss before tax except that interest income, 10ss on disposal of subsidiaries,
finance costs, fair value changes on derivative financial asset and liabilities, equity-
settled share option expenses, fair value changes on investment properties,
impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets, amortisation of other intangible
assets, share of profits and losses of an associate and a joint venture as well

as head office and corporate income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
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31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+=-HA=+—H

Sports-related Community Green energy
BE-_Z-ME business development business Total
Year ended 31 December 2014 TZA=+—-HLEE EEHBER HEME RKEHRER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T TER TER TER
Segment revenue: U
External HhER 97,317 13,032 1,069 111,418
Other revenue Hip A - - 38 38
97,317 13,032 1,107 111,456
Segment results ABEE (25,846) (31,437) (0,903) (67,186)
Reconciliation: FE -
Interest income FEUA 15,841
Fair value gain on investment properties BREMEZ RFEFE 64
Fauity-settled share option expense NIREES 2 BRERY (49,968)
Corporate and other unallocated income rERAEMRIERA 2,621
Corporate and other unallocated expenses CEREMARIERT (60,982)
Share of profits and losses of an associate and ~~ DEME AT R AL E
a joint venture e RER (299,510)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBARCEBETE (2,957)
Finance costs BB (968)
Loss before income tax BRETEHRAIER m
Other segment information: Hi 2 HER !
Depreciation e 1,347 4,941 6 6,294
Add: depreciation related to corporate mECEEE ME 785
7,079
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B LA EHBEE - 467 - 467
Capital expenditure BARRX 2,089 1,522 7 3,618
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate m-EtEERE
BARX 187
3,805

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
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31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

Sports-related Community Green energy
BE_Z2—=F busingss development business Total
Year ended 31 December 2013 +-A=+—RALEE RERBES HERE KEERES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT AT
Segment revenue: 2R
External BB 91,628 31,945 1,589 125,162
Other revenue H A 4,012 1,639 2,220 7,871
95,640 33,584 3,809 133,033
Segment results PHEE (17,517) (22,471) (7,592) (47,580)
Reconcilation: HEE
Bank interest income |ITHBWA 9,320
Fair value gain on derivative financial asset PTERBEERTETE 62,543
Fair value loss on derivative financial liabilites T8 K A B L FEKE (156,000)
Fair value gain on investment properties BEWME 2 AFEMNE 6,446
Equity-setiled share option expense DRSS 2 BRERY (30,060)
Impairment of goodwill HERE (269,758)
Impairment of other intangible assets Hitt B\ EERE (9,537)
Amortisation of ther intangible assets HEREESH (4,897)
Corporate and other unallocated income PEREMKDERA 22,998
Corporate and other unallocated expenses CEREMRIERY (48,975)
Share of losses of an associate DMEBE R R 2 BB (179,999)
Finance costs BB (264)
Loss before income tax BRETGHAIER m
Other segment information: HitipBEHR
Depreciation nE 2,137 3519 = 5,656
Add: depreciation related to corporate mECEEE TE 849
6,505
Amortisation of prepald land lease payments B L &I - 313 - 313
Write-off of other deposits WiEHtZES = 13 = 13
Write-back of inventories to net realised value ~ BEF EZ A2 F A - - (895) (895)
Capital expenditure BEARY 795 7,285 = 8,080
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate mErEEE s ELARSY ik
8,191
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
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31 December 2014 —F—WFE+=—A=+—H

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$83,177,000 was derived from one individual
customer of the sports-related business segment for the year ended

31 December 2014,

Revenue of approximately HK$56,786,000 and HK$12,512,000 were derived
from two individual customers of the sports-related business segment and
approximately HK$13,039,000 was derived from one customer of the community
development segment for the year ended 31 December 2013.

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME/
LOSS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents (i) the net invoiced value
of goods sold, net of valug-added tax and after allowances for returns and trade
discounts; (ii) the value of services rendered, net of business tax and government
surcharges; (iil) considerations received and receivable for organising events

and competitions; and (iv) gross rental income received and receivable from
investment properties during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue and other net income/loss are
as follows:

FEEF2ER
REBE-_ZT-—NE+_A=+—RHILFE"
49831770008 T2 W NELEE —REE
HEEB DB ERNES -

REBEEZE—=F+_A=+—RHLFE"
4956,786,0005% 7T F2.12,512,0007 7T 2 W 25 T3
EXEMABERBEBSS I 2ERIEFIA
K #913,039,0008 T2 W TVEA E — Rt
BERSBZEE-

%ﬁ;ﬁzﬁ?’z CHt B REMFHRA
W (MAEEzEX£%B) NIEFRARE T
PSR ZEF: (HEERZBEFE (&N
BRIZERARIMBREEREERESITM)
(NPT ARIS B A (L H0kk & XM M BUT &
B) (iR kERASESREEZRE:
RivEREWEBEKREERZHES KA LR
o

AREBUZ Hb WS REMFRA BB
oMW

Revenue

Sports content production and distribution income

Sports talent management income
Sale of construction materials
@Gross rental income

Consultancy service income

Sale of air-conditioners and ventilation systems and

air-purifiers

iy 2

BERNBTREREZXKA

BE AT EEREA

HEZM

ik G ON

A 5 AR 75 U

HEZEH SBR RS AR
ZERFER

Other Revenue H b=

Interest income B YA

Underwriting commission fee received EWEz BiEEE
Others Efth

Other net income/(loss) HisFlA (FBR)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net
Fair value gain on derivative financial assets
Fair value gain on investment properties

Foreign exchange gains, net

HEK B R E 2 B8 HE
DT AR 5 & B N AN E
BREWME 2 N FENE
B 32 A1) R % BB

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

2014

—E—NmE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(N =a T#ET FHTT
91,095 72,261
6,222 19,367
12,244 31,335
747 610
11 =
1,069 1,589
111,418 125,162
15,841 9,320
37(a)(i) - 12,960
2,660 3,631
18,501 25,911
(2,957) -
27 - 62,543
64 6,446
- 14,278
(2,893) 83,267
15,608 109,178




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIBEA
Group
rE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
Interests on bank and other loans repayable AR —FRNEEZRTR
within one year H A B F S 26 968 264
7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREAEHAIESE
The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBRABHATBEEENEG, (5tA)
THFIHES

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAK 11,007 24,254
Cost of services provided T 12 £ Al 7% Bl 2 89,194 78,223
Depreciation e 14 7,079 6,505
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEAT £ b FE & TR E 5 16 467 313
Amortisation of other intangible assets HA & EE s - 4,897
Minimum lease payments under operating leases of 13t R F KL H 4 2 &
land and buildings K2 11,757 8,802
Auditors’ remuneration % 26N B
— audit services —ZER 3,029 2,800
— fax services — M7 B 75 100 262
— other services — H At Bk 7% 846 1,418
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERAMALZ (BHE
remuneration (Note 8)): E=Me (MHsE8) ) -
— Wages and salaries —TERE® 55,898 51,593
— Equity-settled share option expenses —UREEE 2
BB R X 19,760 20,478
— Contributions to defined contribution —TE B RUR K
retirement plans FH 8l 2 T 4,142 4,259
79,800 76,330
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWE BE &&E
plant and equipment BHEZER/(FIH) 478 (160)
Fair value gain on investment properties KREWMEZ X FHENE 15 (64) (6,446)
Fair value gain on derivative financial asset PTEMBEEE A FENE 27 - (62,543)
Impairment of goodwill 2R E 17 - 269,758
Impairment of other intangible assets Himp&EERE - 9,537
Write-back of inventories to net realisable value BEFEZER R FE - (895)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBARZEEFE 2,957 =
Foreign exchange loss, net PE 5 Es 18 F R 11,162 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
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31 December 2014 —F—WFE+=—A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration for the year were as follows: FRNESMES0T
Group
&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fees Gk 1,500 1,452
Other emoluments: H i -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUAREMREF 14,010 11,080
Equity-settled share option expenses ARt 8 2 BB 9,907 11,050
Pension scheme contributions RRSFEIHR 51 45
23,968 22,175
25,468 23,627

During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of

the Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

RAFERBEFE ETESRERNE
8 4% {1 AR 7% 1 AR #% A & B R A pE A B R
FERE  ARE—TH BN M BRRME
0 -ZEEEEZATFENBERBHBE
BaER YREERLEAHEE  matA
REEMBHRR ZARADFTALXAREZ
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows: EEMESTUT
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Retirement
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses contributions remuneration
e BER NUREREZ Bike
ok ENRA  BRERX ATEIMS A5y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
2014 —E-|mF
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Li Ning FELE 150 11,202 346 17 11,715
Mr. Chan Ling RELE 150 1,800 3,456 17 5,423
Mr. Li Chunyang THEEBEE 150 1,008 2,995 17 4170
450 14,010 6,797 51 21,308
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ma Wing Man BAUEE 150 - 346 - 496
Mr. Chan James BREREE 150 - 1,152 - 1,302
Mr. Li Qilin TR E 150 - 460 - 610
450 - 1,958 - 2,408
Independent non-executive directors: BYEHTES:
Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred RFELE 200 - 346 - 546
Mr. Chen Johnny RERLEE 200 - 346 - 546
Mr, Lien Jown Jing, Vincent ERELAE 200 - 460 - 660
600 - 1,152 - 1,752
1,500 14,010 9,907 51 25,468
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31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+=-HA=+—H

2013 —Z-=f
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. Li Ning FEEE
Mr. Chan Ling BRE St
M. Li Chunyang FEGEE
Mr, Lee Wa Lun, Warren FERLE
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Chun FTERE
Mr. Ma Wing Man AL
Mr. Chan James Bt B E
Mr. Li Qilin PR EE
Independent non-executive directors: BYFEHTES:
Mr. Ng Sau Kel, Wilfred RYEEE
Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen EHBLAE
Mr. Chen Johnny BRERLE
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BERELAE

Note 1:  Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren retired with effect from 25 June 2013, the net amount
of HK$420,000 credited to equity-settled share option expense represented the reversal of
share option value unvested recognised in prior year over the share option value recognised

during the year.

Note 2:

during the year.

Note 3:  Appointed on 28 June 2013
Note 4:  Appointed on 6 June 2013
Note 5:

Notes

P&

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Retirement
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind eXpenses contributions remuneration
e ERR NRESHE RRE
e EmEN BRERX SRR e m@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET THET TET
150 8,450 411 15 9,026
150 1,850 4,766 15 6,781
150 780 4,218 15 5,163
73 - (420) - (347)
523 11,080 8,975 45 20,623
63 - (420) - (357)
150 - 516 - 666
76 - 759 — 835
85 = 304 - 389
374 - 1,159 - 1,533
200 - 516 - 716
41 = (420) - (379)
200 - 516 - 716
114 - 304 - 418
555 - 916 - 1,471
1,452 11,080 11,050 45 23,627
a1 ZERLEER-_ZF—Z=ZF~A=1+H

Mr. Li Chun, retired with effect from 6 June 2013, the net amount of
HK$420,000 credited to equity-settled share option expense represented the reversal of
share option value unvested recognised in prior year over the share option value recognised

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, resigned with effect from 15 March 2013, the net

amount of HK$420,000 credited to equity-settled share option expense represented the

reversal of share option value unvested recognised in prior year over the share option value

recognised during the year.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three directors (2013;
three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2013: two) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

9. HEREHFMAL
FALERSFMALBE=2BF (=
—=F ZREF) HMEFBS N LEXH
S E - FAEBME (—F—=F M%)
HERRBEETRTREBZESFMALZ
MeFBEmT:

Group

xE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREYEH 7,690 2,698
Equity-settled share option expenses ARt E 2 BB 2,904 5,681
Retirement scheme contributions BRI FT B 17 122
10,611 8,501

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHBLATHE 2 FEF R TRER 2 &
BHMALZABNT

Number of employees

BEAH
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017%8 7T £4,500,0007 7T - 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0017%8 7T £5,000,0007 7T 1 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7T &5,500,0007 7T - -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T £6,000,0007 7T 1 =
2 2

In prior year, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.

EFCHETRIFEEIFTRARZ&S
#r B A 1 73 AN 5= T AR A% 1 [A) L IR o RS AR
BERE - PRHBERNPERRMEN - ZF
BEEZAFEXRFBYRERS®ER X
REH B RERE Mat AXFERBHRE 2
FEEHALXFAFRBEZHFEST RIFTRAE
BRZRBFHMALZHER-
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31 December 2014 —FE—ME+=-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FREH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC corporate income tax have been AEEFALERBEAERPEEETMAE
provided for the year ended 31 December 2014 as the Group did not generate A EN MU EREE—_T—NF+ A

any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong and the PRC, respectively, during the =+ BLEFESRELBEBNESH EH
year (20713: Nil). TEMESRBEHE(ZTE—=F:8)
Group
&
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
Deferred tax credit EERIEK & 28 (801) (4,570)
Income tax credit Frig i & (801) (4,570)
A reconciliation of the income tax credit applicable to loss before income tax for KAARRRERBLOMBARFAEREE
the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are B 2EARBRAENAIERZAETHES
domiciled to the tax credit is as follows: EMIER e 2 HERNOT
Group
E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax BRELFTS R EE (463,045) (645,763)
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of BTARREAEERZ
different jurisdictions EE/SERITEMEE (106,970) (125,235)
Profits and losses attributable to an associate and DG EARREEDRE
a joint venture 2o w K g5 18 74,882 45,000
Income not subject to tax H AR A (4,810) (27,452)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HOIFE F 2 18,826 78,106
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEE B 16,544 24,906
Others HAh 727 105
Income tax credit Frisfif e (801) (4,570)
The share of income tax expense attributable to an associate for the year FADMEBE AR EMTEHREXE
amounting to HK$14,481,000 (2013 tax credit HK$6,647,000) is included in 14,481,000 T (2 —=ZFHBEIX R :
“Share of profits and losses of an associate and a joint venture” in the profit or 6,647,000/87C) Jist ABm 2 [ DG & A A
loss. ReghEZBMNREE |-

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
R ESE

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+—-_A=+—H

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of HK$586,135,000 (2013:
HK$503,090,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

N, ZREEERRELEE

BE-_Z-—NF+-RA=+—HILFE"
ARAEERREERABEREERE
586,135,000 7T ( — & — = 4 : 503,090,000
ABIL)ZEBE BEARRMBREEE -

12 XAFEERRELGERER
SREAERDERARAZGRREBEFA

BRI NE AT HTEBBRNEF GG
% o

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 2% 2 &) 4 25 A% 51 fE (5 &5 48 (462,176) (640,919)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue B 317 @ MR A 7,457,859 5,989,600
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK cents) FRRERKREEERE (B) (6.20) (10.70)

No adjustment has been made to the basis loss per share amounts presented
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 in respect of
a dilution as the impact of the perpetual convertible bonds, share options and
unlisted warrants of the Company outstanding during the twelve months ended
31 December 2014 and the perpetual convertible bonds and share options of
the Company outstanding during the twelve months ended 31 December 2013,
either had anti-dilutive or no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

13. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE, LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2013, assets held for sale and liabilities held for sale were
approximately HK$7,278,000 and HK$3,370,000 respectively. Disposal of
76.9% equity interests in a subsidiary of the Group in Zhongshan, the PRC was
completed in March 2014 and a gain of approximately HK$5,741,000 was
recorded as a result.

REETEME BRARARBE_ZT
—ME+ A=+ —HALE+_EAHREN
AN BB 55 18 AR 1T 168 2 P OO I JF
FTREEBARARARBE_—FT—=
FH-A=1t—RHL+—EARENKAE
AHRBE R KR RITRE 2 B A R#EE
MERWEE 27| 2 BREREESRA
BEME BUERBE_T-NOF+_A
=t—ARZF—=Ft-_A=1T—HLF
B2z 8RERNEREBELARE-

13. P EABFEHEZHEARN 2E
E 7EBABELECEEEEHEHEBE
28 &

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—8 BHEHEXL
ERFBELREEED B4 AT7,278,000% T &
3,370,000 o I E A S B — R A B
W B RRIMT6.90%EERN S —NF=
A FERK - I [ 1tk 8% 45 F1)0E 495,741,000 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

107



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
LR T E N

31 December 2014 —ZE—WF+=-HA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14, ME - BEERRE

Group RE
Machinery
Leasehold and office Furniture and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BER
BT HENEEE BLERE  GHEREE "E @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TERL TERL TEL TERL TERL TERL
31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=t-H
At 1 January 2014; WZZ-NE-A—H:
Cost A 51,456 6,400 11,292 2,068 6,293 77,509
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2HTERAME (1,225) (5,251) (3,249) (1,155) (3,097) (13,977)
Net book amount EEFE 50,231 1,149 8,043 913 3,196 63,532
Opening net book amount ENREFE 50,231 1,149 8,043 913 3,196 63,532
Additions NE 70 1,813 1,857 5 - 3,745
Disposal HE - - (1) (m) - (478)
Depreciation charge HEE (1,809 (1,224) (2,787) (256) (1,003) (7,079
Currency translation differences EHES (1,125) 6 (163) (16) (66) (1,364)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 47,367 1,744 6,949 169 2,12 58,356
At 31 December 2014; RZE-EE+=A=1—AR:
Cost RA 50,360 8,081 12,890 678 6,152 78,161
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REATERRE (2,993) (6,337) (5,941) (509) (4,025) (19,805)
Net book amount EAFE 47,367 1,744 6,949 169 2,121 58,356
31 December 2013 ZE-Zf+tZA=t-H
At 1 January 2013; RZZ-=4-HA—-R:
Cost KA = 6,276 4,010 1,99 4,557 16,839
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RHFTERAE - (3,372) (1,770) (748) (1,301) 7,191)
Net book amount FHFE - 2,904 2,240 1,048 3,256 9,648
Opening net book amount ENREFE - 2,904 2,240 1,248 3,256 9,648
Additions NE = = 5,707 26 1,538 7,21
Transfer from investment properties EBREARENE 1 50,652 - 1438 - - 52,090
Depreciaton charge FEE (1,214 (1,785) (1,439) (37) (1,681) (6,505)
Currency translation differences ERER 793 30 % 2 83 1028
Closing net book amount FREAFE 50,231 1149 8,043 913 3,19 63,532
At 31 December 2013; RZZ-=F+-fA=+-B:
Cost KA 51,456 6,400 11,292 2,068 6,293 77,509
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BHFTERAE (1,225) (5,251) (3,249) (1,159) (3,097) (13,977)
Net book amount EEFE 50,231 1,149 8,043 913 3,196 63,532
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31 December 2014 —_ZE—WWFE+—-_A=+—H

Company AT
Leasehold Office Furniture
improvements equipment and fixtures Total
£
HENE BAERE BRREE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TAER TER TER
31 December 2014 “E-MFE+=A=t+-H
At 1 January 2014: RZE—mE—F—H:
Cost BEN 2,443 1,088 608 4,139
Accumulated depreciation REtE (1,625) (853) (386) (2,864)
Net book amount REFE 818 235 222 1,275
Opening net book amount FENEREFE 818 235 222 1,275
Additions T - 182 5 187
Disposal & - (1) - (1)
Depreciation charge nEE (489) (175) (121) (785)
Closing net book amount FIRREFE 329 241 106 676
At 31 December 2014; RZE—mF
+-A=+—-8”:
Cost X AR 2,443 1,252 613 4,308
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (2,114) (1,011) (507) (3,632)
Net book amount REFE 329 241 106 676
31 December 2013 “2-=F%
+ZR=+-H
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—HA—R:
Cost AR 2,443 1,017 582 4,042
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (1,137) (628) (264) (2,029)
Net book amount RH%E 1,306 389 318 2,013
Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,306 389 318 2,013
Additions NE = 85 26 1M
Depreciation charge nEE (488) (239) (122) (849)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 818 235 202 1,275
At 31 December 2013; R_T—=%
+-A=+—-R:
Cost AN 2,443 1,088 608 4139
Accumulated depreciation REHE (1,625) (853) (386) (2,864)
Net book amount KA 818 235 222 1,275
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. RWEWE
Land use rights
held for future
development
Under of industrial
Completed construction buildings Total
B
ARAEH
IT%EF2
%I EE  IHERE @Gt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Btk FTET FTAEL TAET TAET
(note (b))
(BEEED))
Carrying amount at 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—F—H2
REE 78,985 11,159 195,056 285,200
Additions NE 44 876 - 920
Fair value gain AFEERR 848 = 5,598 6,446
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ EEEYE BEKR 14 (52,090) = = (52,090)
Transfer to prepald land lease payments ERETENTHAEMR 16 (22,428) = = (22,428)
Transfers EiE 17,198 (5,420) (11,778) -
Currency translation differences fE =% 1,403 385 6,340 8,128
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013and RZZE—=%F+_ A
1 January 2014 =+t-8k
RZE—NF
—A—BzKEE 23,960 7,000 195,216 226,176
Additions NE - 60 - 60
Fair value gain/(loss) AFEKE/ (B1B) (216) (93) 373 64
Currency translation differences BE X Z R (543) (159) (4,421) (5,123)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE+-A
=+—BZKREE 23,201 6,808 191,168 221,177

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

for investment properties RREVENRESERACSHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Rental income e WA 747 607
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H AEFIL R
for future repairs and maintenance (2013 Nil). BEEENERBHECHREERRERMT

(ZE—=F &)

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R
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Notes:

(a) The Group's investment properties are situated in the PRC and are held under
medium term leases.

(b) Land use rights held for future development of industrial buildings are used to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

(c) The fair values of the Group’s investment properties are assessed by management
based on the property valuation performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2014 was HK$221,177,000 (2013: HK$226,176,000).

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Quoted prices
in active markets
for identical

assets
1
RER

Level 1
B&EE
mEZ

HE
£

HK$'000

IEMEET

Industrial property units

TR

B & -
@) AEBUAPEZEEYETIRG ALY
KB

b) FHERKAEBIXEFTZ I MERELR
PABRERIE & WA K, E A EE -

) EEERBEBYEESEARGEEME—K
FEAEMEERIEREMER AT ZWEM
EFEAEBEENEZAFE- R —NF
+ZRA=+—8 &EWF ZKREE /221,177,000
BT (ZZT— =4 :226,176,000/ 7T ) °

=

AEEREMEZHBER-_Z-—OFE+_-A
ST —HZAFESRERBZEHET:

Fair value as at
31 December

Significant other
observable

Significant
unobservable

inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 2014
R-Z-NF

HEX EAFRT +=A
ARZHAZE BEHAYE =t+-H2
EZR E=R A¥E
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TET TET FET

- 221,177 221,177

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Quoted prices
in active markets
for identical

assets
1
RER

Level 1
BEE
miEZ

#E
£-4

HK$'000

IEMEET

Industrial property units

FA7T

AEERENE S HBERR =4+ 7
St+-BZATFESREHEZERNT

Significant other Significant Fair value as at
observable unobservable 31 December
inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 2013
RZE-=F

HthEX P | +=A
AHERAZE BREAYE Er=EzZ
E-R EZR A¥E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT TH

- 226,176 226,176
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There
were no transfers among the levels during the year.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and made reference to available comparable market transactions. The valuation
also takes into account the rental income of contractual tenancies, reversionary market
rent after the expiry of tenancy in capitalisation (2014 and 2013: RMB3.3 — RMB15.0
per sq.m. per month), capitalisation rate (2014 and 2013: 6%), expected vacancy rate
(2014 and 2013: 20%), interest rate (2014 5.6%; 2013: 6%), developer's profit margin
(2014 and 2013: 8%), latest development proposals and estimated construction costs

to completion (2014 and 2013: RMB1,200 per sg.m.) etc. The assumptions have been
adjusted for the quality and location of the properties. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rent and negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate,
expected vacancy rate, interest rate, estimated cost to completion and developer’s profit
margin.

(d)  Asat 31 December 2013, certain portion of the investment properties has

been substantially completed, for which the completion and acceptance certificates for
construction works and the real estate title certificates have not yet been obtained by the
Group. Accordingly, additional construction costs and any other associated charges may
be incurred and payable to contractors and/or the relevant government authorities for
the fulfillment of the completion and acceptance for construction works. There was no
significant movement during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(e) Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on page 143.

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
Group

AEBHOBRBNE EEV%#“H&%RE%
SIRBEE BRRAFESREABRNE AR
BH-NFAREER 2B zEE-

WEMEZ N FEEBFEMNBRAE AL EL 2
ERAAEEBMERIMET - HENEEA
HEPzHASRA HHEEREZTEETSHE
$§$k(_§ MER -—Z—=%F :8E/FF
HARAREIITEARKEIS0T) - BRMER(—Z
—FER —_T—=4F:6%) BHEER_-ZT—

FERZEFE—=ZF:20% FME(ZZE—MHF:56%
2B —=F:6%) HABRBZEMNRCZ—NF
RZE—=F:8%) =M ERAREMGFTTIAA
A(ZE—ER_TE—ZF:FFHRKARKE
120070 S5 - BRECHZSWEZHEERNVE
MAE - A TFEFEEMBHES R MEE
R FBHIZEBE R - FIR Bt R IRA KA
AmZENEABER-

 R=ZT—=F+-A=+—H8 B5FTHHZ
BEMEERN FBERT - EpAEEEREEE
ETREBRTRUFEUALEHEXEEETEZ Bt
AR @ AL EE T A2 2 38 T BR U 2 A FE N A 2 7
&/X@%ﬁﬁ%%Z%%%ﬁ&$&Eﬁﬁm
By REBE—T—mE+—HA=+—HIF
FEHEEAET-

REBREMEZE - THIBARE143

=

o

16. AN LB ENRE
A EH

i

R—A—BZEREE

Carrying amount at 1 January

Transfer from investment properties EREIEEYE

Amortisation provided during the year F NS

Currency translation differences BB EBmER

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—ZA=+—RH2
REE

R E D

Less: current portion

The Group’s land use rights are situated in the PRC and are held under medium
term leases.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FHExT TH&TT
21,993 -

15 - 22,428
(467) (313)

31) 353

21,495 22,468

22 (464) (475)
21,031 21,993

ARE B FE 2 + (AT IR AR OR
Ao
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17. GOODWILL
Group

17. &
rEE

At 1 January: KR—H—H:
Cost BN
Accumulated impairment E5RE
Net book amount REFE

Opening net book amount FHERmFEE

Impairment BIE

Closing net book amount FREEFE

At 31 December: R+—-_A=+—8:
Cost BN
Accumulated impairment E5HRE
Net book amount REFE

Green energy business 4% B RE R TS

Sports-related business BEEHEBEXEY

(@) Impairment testing of goodwill

The net carrying amount of the goodwill, which arose from the acquisitions of
subsidiaries, has been allocated to the relevant cash-generating units of the
individual operating segments of the Group for impairment testing purposes.

The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating unit was determined
based on the value in use calculations covering a detailed five-year financial
budget plan and the estimated terminal value at the end of the five-year financial
budget plan period prepared by the Group’s management.

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
=2 FHET FH&T
458,192 458,192

(458,192) (188,434)

- 269,758

- 269,758

(a) - (269,758)
458,192 458,192

(458,192) (458,192)

(@) - -

(@) FEEBRERNHE
HWERB AR MEEHERMFEE S
REAEEFEREED B ABRESELSE
L AYER (BRI EA,

PR eEE BN 2 AN E SRR IREE A
BEET BERASEEEECSHRE 2D
HADFEMREEE A FRRAEE
HRE R 2 (AR AR B -
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Notes:

Sports-related business cash-generating unit

Value in use of the cash-generating unit in the sports-related business was determined by
reference to a business valuation performed by American Appraisal using a value in use

calculation.

Based on the impairment test performed, an impairment loss of HK$269,758,000 has
been provided in relation to the sports-related business segment in 2013.

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

GEX
BE AN EL B

BAEBEBRSELBL EAEENELE
EEFEREREETEAR 2 LB HEE

E °

BERBARAER — S —FNESHBER
o BB R 2 R (B B 18 A269,758,0007 TT ©

18. RHMIBAT 2R

Investments in subsidiaries, included A NNl - i
in non-current assets RIEREEE AR
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETD A ARE
Due from subsidiaries NG S
Less: Impairment A
Due from subsidiaries, included in current assets NGRS ER
R e & E AR
Less: Impairment A
Due to subsidiaries, included in current liabilities R NGIE SR
RnEaFEAR

Notes:

(a) A subsidiary of the Company had restructured and capitalised balances with its
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries during the year of 2013. The corresponding impairment
recognised for the balances was transferred to investments in subsidiaries. As such, the net
impact is nil in 2013.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

Company
RAF
2014
—_Z2—MF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FAT
(a) 337,960 337,960
(b) 3,431,733 3,509,649
() (829,373) (337,960)
2,940,320 3,509,649
(b) 566,559 714,531
(d) (9,264) (1,539)
557,295 712,992
(b) (254,356) (249,876)
B 7E

@ R-ZFE—=F ARAz—MBWNBLREE
TEANEERZKME AR RMEQE ZERE
B AL - B4 B HERR 2 AR B R 18 ) B8 18 = 0P
ERARIZRE BN R_T—=FFEFRR

= o
=
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(b)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the Company’s non-current assets,

current assets, and current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

(c)  Animpairment of HK$491,413,000 was recognised in 2014 for amounts due from
subsidiaries.

An impairment of HK$302,329,000 was recognised in 2013 for unlisted investments with
a cost of HK$337,960,000 because of the decrease in anticipated profitability from a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

b R ESHERRRIELDDRRAR A
FRDEE RBEERRBDEBAR AENR

AAEEM - 08 N EEEERY -

(0 HZ=T—MF  HEREURHERFFIE R
1B %3491,413,000/ 7T

R —T— =4 A& 5337,960,000/8 T 2 JE £
% & TR R (E302,329,000/ 7T - THRANEE 2
—M2EWB AR ZBEAEFIGE N TEATE

(d)  The movement in the provision for impairment of the amounts due from subsidiaries o  FREWRHEBR R FRIE 2 E B &
during the year is as follows: ™
Company
b N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT F#&IT
At 1 January Wn—HA—H 1,539 352,452
Impairment recognised during the year FARERZBE 7,725 41,834
Capitalised during the year FRERNE - (392,747)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 9,264 1,539
(e)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: ) EEWBARFHBHOT:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary
Company name operations shares/ capital
HMAYL FME 2R
AR AR EEMY LERBRE
Viva China Holdings Ltd (*VCHL") BVI US$1
EBERAHS Ev
Winner Rich Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1
KHEREBRAA B BT
Viva China Sports Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$520,000
FENFEEEERERAR B 520,000 7T
Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited BVI US$1
FERFEMEFABEERER AR EREAHS E
Viva China Community Development (Yangznhou) BVI US$10
Holdings Limited RERTES I
FAFEMERE (BN BERERAF
Viva China Yangzhou Community Hong Kong HK$10,000
Development Holdings Limited ) 10,0007 7T

FRRBHM RFAFEREGRAF

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company Principal activities
AAAEEREAB DL TEER
Direct Indirect

E# Gk
100% - Investment holding

REERK
Investment holding
REERK

Investment holding and
sports talent management
REARRREBEATER

Investment holding

BB R

Investment holding

RA R

100% =

100% =

100% =

= 70%

= 70%  Investment holding

RARK
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Company name

DREH

Coolpoint Energy (Hong Kong) Limited
RES (BB)BERAA
Fully Link Company Limited
2HARAT

FNERBEER (LR)ERRE"

EGARRRREELRBRAR

ERFAFHEHEAATRAF

*

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
MR K
W

BVI/Hong Kong
RERZEE /BB

BVI
KBRS

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

PRC
T

Issued ordinary
shares/ capital

BT
EER/BRE

Us§100
100% 7T

US$1
(E

HK$100,000,000
100,000,0007% 7T

RMB100,000,000
ARE
100,000,0007¢

HK$15,000,000
15,000,000% 7T

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

RIUTREZBREARADF 1R
Equipment (HK) Limited and Coolpoint Ventilation Equipment Limited were disposed during
the year 2014, The loss on disposal of subsidiaries of the Group is disclosed in note 5 to

the financial statements.

= A Al 2L
= BP BE 8%

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]

& C&I) B BR 2 A, Coolpoint

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company Principal activities
AAREERABDL

Direct Indirect
E# k3
100% =

FERER

Investment holding
REZR

Holding of trademarks and
patents

BEREREF

Sports talent management,
competition and event
production and management,
and sports consultancy service

BEATER LEREY
SUEREB RERHS
PR %

Properties holding and leasing of
investment properties

RENEFREERENE

Provision of development
Consultancy services

BRI B o AR ES

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

FEBIARAZHBAT EERA HIH
BARATEHENREBRYELANAEE
BEFEL ZEHD BEERARTIRMHER
Az EHESHEBBRTE-

GEE
R_F—mE P LUTREEBREERAA
BREDLLEE ORI BRAT  RERE (F5)
ARAFRRESHREARA TS B E 1
EAREENBAR 2 BB 5B R -
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19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT VENTURE 19. REBEENTFIREELECER
Group AEE
Interest in an associate RIEEE N G2

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TFET
Share of net assets of an associate DI E AR 2 BEFE
(2014: 26.1%; 2013: 26.1%) —E—UF :261% ;
—E—=4F:261%) 1,127,076 1,441,316
Goodwill HE 1,541,038 1,576,762
Carrying value EmE 2,668,114 3,018,078
Interest in a joint venture REELEZ#ER

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amount due from a joint venture JEU A &% ZFIE 5,911 =
Share of net assets of a joint venture* DHEECEZEEFE" 45 =
5,956 —
2,674,070 3,018,078

*Including share of profit of HK$50,000 (2013: Nil) for the year ended Y BESBEBEE_ZE—NF+-—_A=+—RH1t
31 December 2014. FE2mHM500008T(ZT—=F: )

The following is a movement of interest in an associate during the year: AR BFARAREEQE 2
2014
—E—NEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHT FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,018,078 2,594,471
Costs incurred during the year FRFAZ KA - 515,842
Share of loss for the period SMEEANEE (299,560) (179,999)
Share of other comprehensive income G E M2 E K E 3 218
Elimination of underwriting fee income R B HE KA 37 (a)(i - (4,697)
Share of reserve DG 16,506 5,584
Currency translation differences b H ZE R (66,913) 86,659
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,668,114 3,018,078
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Particulars of the Group’s only associate is as follows:

Place of Percentage of ownership
Particulars of incorporation/ interest attributable
Name issued shares held registration to the Group
FEERTRGZ BRRAL/ rEEELERRE
£ FiE ot ff 3t B BEzEIH
Li Ning Co Ordinary shares of Cayman Islands 26.1%
HK$0.1 each
FERT SREMBIET. HEHE 26.1%
=R
Note

On 12 October 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with two
entities which are held by trusts and the beneficiaries of which included family members

of Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Chun, his brother, for the acquisition of 266,374,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co (“LN Shares”), representing approximately
25.2% equity interest in Li Ning Co as at the date of acquisition.

The purchase consideration for the acquisition was satisfied by (i) the issue of
1,780,220,769 ordinary shares credited as fully paid at issuance; (i) the issue of initial
perpetual convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (“Initial Perpetual
Convertible Bonds"); and (iii) the possible issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds
(“Earn-out Perpetual Convertible Bonds”) based on the operating performance of Li Ning Co
for the financial periods between 2013 and 2017, subject to a maximum principal amount
of HK$780,000,000 (the “Contingent Consideration”). Further details of the sale and
purchase agreement were set out in the Company's announcement dated

12 October 2012 and the Company’s circular dated 7 November 2012. The acquisition
was completed on 4 December 2012 and a goodwill amounting to HK$1,527,488,000,
which arose from the excess of the purchase consideration over the Group’s interests in the
fair value of identifiable net assets of LN Group attributable to shareholders of LN Group

at the date of acquisition was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2012, and
included in “Investments in an associate” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the 2013 Li Ning Open Offer, the Group exercised its rights for subscription and
excess application for the convertible securities in the principal amount of HK$3.50 per unit
of convertible securities. Approximately 146,759,000 units of convertible securities were
allotted to the Group at the total consideration of approximately HK$513,656,000. In this
connection, the Group’s equity interests in Li Ning Co has increased from approximately
25.2% to approximately 26.1% with effect from April 2013, assuming all holders of the
convertible securities convert the convertible securities in full upon completion of the 2013
Li Ning Open Offer. The Group was one of the underwriters of the 2013 Li Ning Open
Offer and its obligations under the related underwriting agreement had ceased forthwith
upon completion of 2013 Li Ning Open Offer. The Group received a gross underwriting fee
amounted to HK$18,617,000 during the year ended 31 December 2013 (note 37 (a)(ii)).
In December 2014, 33,000,000 units of convertible securities of Li Ning Co held by the
Group were converted into LN Shares.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]

AEBEEBEZBMERRZFROT:

Principal activities

FTEEK

Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and distribution of
sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories in
the PRC

RAEREEEEREE R M REGZ@E
FE Rt RE HERDHE

GEE

R-BE——F+A+-B AEEERBEEE (A
FEARZEA (BRETELERERATHELE
BEEZREXNB)BBIGLEE B NIKRE
266,374,000% % A "I AN R & A%0.1078 7T 2 & 15
(==l ])  RIKEE BIGEEQAR Z425.2%
%A o

Wi £ 18 2 8 B (B B ()% 171,780,220,769/% &
B (REBETEARIMESR)  (\BITASES
780,000,000/ 7T Z #IIA K A M Rl Bk &5 ([ 458
KA AR ES | ) + R (i) 0] 88 B 1T & Fl 82 71 oK
AR ES ([ BRI Ik AR ES )
(LNZEEQARN-E—=FF_FT—+F I
ZEEBERE BIKRIE &= A %5 A780,000,0007%8
TO)ETSM (THARE]) - EEMEZIE—F
HEHRARRBERA-ZE——F+A+=-A2
NEUERAATBHA—_E——F+—A+tH2
BR-WBEEENR_ZT——F+_ANHZERK
B ELS R 527,488,000/ 7T 0 HEEE R EBH
AEERZTEEEZRERNKBEHELRTES
EAEHREEFECATERSZEZHINE
E_T——_F+-_A=+—HILFE®R Lt
AGEFBRRARZ [REEE AR Z2RE ] -

BIE-T—=—FFTBARABE AEFTEEE
FRBILEEINHB IR E S (FHARREF
2 7N & B A3.50%8 70 ) © 49146,759,00017 ] #2 A% 75
5 THLA 48R (B 49513,656,00078 TTAC 2 T A2 B © 3
HMs AEBRTEQRIZBREER - —=
F YA HE B 4925.2%8 INE £926.1% (RE& AT A 7]
BREFFAEARZEZFTEFRAABETK
BREERAIBRES) AEBME_T—=ZFF
BRAAREZBERZ — MEREBRHETH
BIZEIR-_ZT—=FTHAREEXTKEE
BEENR F-REBE-_E—=F+-_A=+—81t
FEAN  AEBFTKREEEEE A18,617,000% 7T
(FtzE37@)()) - R—T—ME+—F  AEBFE
233,000,000/ =B AR AR BHEEIREETE
B 1D o
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As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s equity interests in relation to Li Ning
Cois 26.1% (2013: 26.1%), assuming all holders of the convertible securities
convert the convertible securities in full upon completion of the 2013 Li Ning
Open Offer.

The Group’s shareholdings in Li Ning Co are held through a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, the market value of the associate’s listed shares was
HK$3.79 (2013: HK$6.12) per share. The number of Li Ning Co ordinary shares
held by the Group as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 299,374,000
Shares (2013: 266,374,000 Shares) and the number of convertible securities
held as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 113,759,000 units (2013:
146,759,000 units).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associate.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
associate extracted from its financial information or financial statements after
adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments for differences in
accounting policies, if any, and for non-coterminous periods between the Group
and the associate:

R-ZFE—MFE+_A=+—H BRRAEH

?ﬁﬂx FHAAR_ZE—=FFE R

TR BB E AT E 5 - N QB T
ﬁ%@?;’ NElZRER261% (ZE—=45:
26.1%

AEERFERRZBETEBARREE
= PNCIES o

R-Z-—MFE+-A=1+—H BERAA L

TP 2 EAERI 7B (ZE—=F:
11&612,%73) cHR-E—NE+-_A=+—
CAREBBEAEZTERNAEARBE D

7%299374000112(_-;——$ 266,374,000
%) R-E—NE+-A=+—HHak
A% 55 25 2 BB 49 /5113,759,00010 (=B —=
£ : 146,759,000 ) ©

R E8 B 45 A ) B AN 6 [ OB 2 X B M R
BRENSARBE-

TEREAANEEBERB 2 MBMBEER
BERER LR E AV B ER KM B REK
(%%?Mﬁzﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁ%&?dﬁ$%E@Hﬁ%%@?
ZHAESABRRNEZR (MB)RTHES
HIRELAR)

HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Gross amounts of the associate BERNTZEELE
Current assets mBNEE 4,851,849 4,740,837
Non-current assets ERBE E 4,684,531 4,780,239
Current liabilities B E 3,503,530 2,654,031
Non-current liabilities FEREBAEE 1,531,259 1,164,251
Net assets attributable to the equity shareholders FF*Hx%FEfﬁéE@TE 4,321,608 5,526,519
Revenue for the period Ak 8,061,511 7,368,864
Loss for the period HRNEE (1,148,395) (706,455)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hibzmkzs, (B#E) 13 858
Total comprehensive loss FHEELATE (1,148,382) (705,597)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in the AEBRBEZEATN
associate SR
Gross amaunts of net assets attributable to the equity i *é NGV Ead & L
shareholders of the associate FEERE 4,321,608 5,526,519
Group's effective interest $’§ EERER 26.1% 26.1%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEERERLBEEARNFEE 1,127,076 1,441,316
Goodwill mE 1,541,038 1,576,762
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 4R & B 7 R R A9 BR E (B 2,668,114 3,018,078
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The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2014 and adjusted for any significant events
or transactions for the period from 1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the twelve
months ended 30 September 2013 and adjusted for any significant events or
transactions for the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2013. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associates’ results based on accounts drawn up
to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months.

AEEHE_T—NEF+_A=+—HLHF
EREeMBERERBEASEDETERF]
HE_T-—MNMEAA=+tHIL+t-@AZE
EREETRE _E—NE+A—BRE=
T—MF+-_A=t+—HIHBRZENEKR
EHSIRGEHRAE - AEEBHE_T—=
F+_A=Z+-—HUEFEZEAUBRERE
BAEBDMEERRBE_ZT—=F1A
—tHETZHAZEERFEELRLE =
T —=—F+A—HAEE_T—=F+_H
=+ —BHIEBEZENEREHHRSIED
FAE AKBECDRMBE BT ERE285RFT
B2 G U B R AR R RN AR
EHER(BEEEZ=RETSESBE=A)Z
REREEVEMEBMEAR ZFEE

20. INVENTORIES 20, &8

Group

rEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&TT
Raw materials R4 % 1,528 1,430
Finished goods BURK SR 10,324 12,989
11,852 14,419

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. BWE S RE

Group
rEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade Receivables FE W Z 5 5 IE 89,855 34,617
Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables B EKRE S RIBRERE - (192)
89,855 34,425

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally

one month, extending up to four months for major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

AEBETIZREENIANERTFRS EEH
—RAE—EA TEXFRIKZAEREE
HEN@EA BREFPHARREERSE-
EREEEEMRNANGEH AARES
R AREYESEERZEERAR K
S B R E B E 5B A R A T
AN EAMIERER ZRE - BRE SR
RREFE -
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An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be impaired REEBRKEZ RBEZEWE S FHIAR

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as FIEA R B B 2 BREC D AT AR T
follows:
Group
rE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired I 7 180 HA =X Rk (B 28,516 16,179
Less than 3 months past due AR =& A 9,100 14,106
3 to 6 months past due BmEA=Z]18 A 21,283 4,131
More than 6 months and less than a year past due AR AN A B DR —F 18,669 =
QOver 1 year past due BHE—F N E 12,287 9
89,855 34,425
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows: EWE ZRIB REREZSNT
Group
rE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 192 459
Reversal of written-off e 85 7% [0 (188) -
Written-off during the year F A EH - (282)
Currency translation differences PEH =58 4 15
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H - 192

Included in the above provision for impairment for trade receivables is a provision Lt E 5 RIBRE 2 B ERED E R
for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$192,000 with a carrying amount B2 REWE 5 I8 2 ##192,000/ 7T - i &

before provision of HK$192,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013. The BT -=F+A=+T—BLEFEIEE
provision for impairment for trade receivables has been reversed upon the AIAREE A&192,0008 7T - B A E W E 5 38
disposal of the subsidiary during 2014, ZRERFEER_ZT—NFHEWBRARE
eI

The individually impaired trade receivables related to customers that were in 2 1B R E < U E 5 5 I8 8 I E B B B
financial difficulties or were in default in both interests and/or principal payments BRRBNERFER, KA ENRZE
and no receivable is expected to be recovered. P BBt EA A ERGKIBTE A T R -
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified 1 A 80 B SRk 1B 2 FE WUk TE B %% 44 3T HA P /R
customers with no recent history of default. HWREH I BEFPBER-
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Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables is an amount of HK$74,227,000
(2013: HK$10,971,000) due from an associate, which is repayable on similar
credit terms to those offered by the Group to the major customers.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

EE B &R E 2 BUKAES ZNAE
BARMEBECBYIEFER REBEL
B ARREFRAREEPZEREERY
BEARNE  MBBERIDER A 2K
B - BB A Z T AR IEH R E R -

REE 2 IR 5 508 B 1 e WU & 2 )5
J874,227,0007& 7T (— T — =4 : 10,971,000
AL HEREEHRASEEHRTEER
BEFZEEHMEE-

22. EARIE BREREMERRIE

Group Company
& b /NG|
2014 2014
—E-NF —B-NE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 TER THET TER AT
Prepayments B HE 2,198 8,706 712 877
Loan advance to an assoclate BRF-RBHELRZ
B (@) 187,500 - 187,500 -
Deposits and other receivables BE R E W IR (o) 147,577 148,624 5,608 267
Prepaid land lease payment BB ERE 16 464 475 - =
337,739 157,805 193,820 1,144
Non-current deposits and Engne REM
other receivables JE YRR IE ©) 7,528 1,617 1,617 1,617

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

Note (a):  On 15 August 2014, the Company advanced a loan of HK$187,500,000 to an
associate. The loan is repayable on demand, and bears an effective interest rate of 7.2%
per annum during the year. Interest accrued for the year was approximately HK$5,287,000
which was included in other receivables. The principal together with the interest were repaid
fully subsequent to the year end.

Note (b):  The deposits as at 31 December 2014 included an advance payment
amounting to HK$125,100,000 (2013: HK$128,000,000) paid to an independent third
party in the PRC, in respect of a potential project, which is refundable to the Group within
12 months from the year end.

Note (c):  The non-current deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2014
included an interest bearing loan advance of HK$5,911,000 (2013: Nil) to a joint venture
partner. The amount is repayable on demand but is expected to be settled more than

12 months after the year end.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

bt & B R s EASORE o 5T A Ll AR 2
M5B E AT HIN e R L ik 2 R MGRIR R
7 -

i@ R-ZE—MWENA+RA AR BB
¥ — B Bt & /A B]187,500,000/8 T 2 BE R e Z B &
BIRBEREER FAREBRERET 2% 8- FR
& 51 F| B 495,287,000 7T 5T A H b & W 7% 18 o K
SERNEEREEARTBHESE-

MiaED: R-F-—OF+_A=t—HAz&LE
RAPEBYFE = TR EBEEREBRAZEN
FRIE125,100,000% 7T ( =F — =4F : 128,000,000/
L) ZAREEAAEE B RFI2EARNRERS
& o

MaEe): R-ZE—WE+-—A=+—HB2ZFrRH
ReREMERZBEEEN—ZAECEZHR
2t BEFHS9110008 T (ZE—=F %) -
ZREAREREEEEPENEEZBE T+
RS-
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23. PLEDGED DEPOSIT, CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and other than time deposits
bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Pledged time deposit:
For bank borrowings

Cash and bank balances

23. EAER RERBITES
Group Company
r5E b NN
2014 2014
—E-lf —E-mE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 TER THEL TER FET
ReREBER
PAON 2 RATHE 85,789 226,074 2,283 9,127
EHER 497,652 620,656 394,866 301,718
583,441 846,730 397,149 310,845
i E%&ﬁi%ﬁﬁ%& :
BRTETEERR 26 (5,007) (19,200) (5,007) (19,200)
BeRBITEH 578,434 827,530 392,142 291,645

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$420,012,000 (2013:
HK$511,325,000), approximately HK$48,636,000 (2013: approximately
HK$51,220,000) of which was domiciled in the PRC. The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies in the PRC, however, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.

24. TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were all
aged within three months, as determined based on the invoice date. They are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from 30 to 60 days.

RBEBRR AEBUAARBIEZRS
MR 1T A 8249 /5420,012,0008 T (—Z T —=
£ :511,325,000% 7)) + E # £948,636,0007%
7T (=8 — =4 : £951,220,0005 7T ) ¥ X
- \RERFBRTIIEREBRAEME
B o R ¢ ARIE (P ESMNEERIKH) K (&
E-EELMMEEEAT) ASERES
BEREETINEEE ZRITHARE KB
REME-

RITBA S (ERFHRFINREERBRTE
SR R 1207 B R R BREX A 2. - %2 B B AF R
ARP—EZEATE RIXKEERHES
TR E - WL B 52 8 E B 17 50M R ERER
MB - RITERREBERRESFRNRIIEE

N B EEBRIITF ZRIT

24. Eﬁf%*

BIEZEH G Wil —E—NFEK
—E—=F+= H = EIZ}%HTE’S% RI8
z&wm&m @A - M:#E%%

RRZAPB0E60R 2 IR W1E &R
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25, HitERREREFTEA
Group Company
S | PN/
2014 2014
—E-MF —E-lE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TEr AT
Accruals BB A 12,927 11,253 6,081 4,229
Other payables Hib I 3E 37,388 25,621 - =
50,315 36,874 6,081 4,229

26. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Bank loans, secured RITEZ AEE 5,007 11,905
Other loan HihE R - 1,024
5,007 12,929

Bank loans, which will be matured within one year, are secured by pledged
deposits of the Group of HK$5,007,000 (2013: HK$19,200,000).

The amount of the other loan as at 31 December 2013 was unsecured, borne
interest at 8.0% per annum and was repayable on demand. The amount was fully
repaid during the year.

The Group has obtained bank facilities of approximately HK$140,835,000 (2013:
HK$96,000,000), of which, approximately HK$135,828,000 remained unutilised
at 31 December 2014,

The carrying amounts of bank and other loans approximate their fair values.

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Derivative financial asset

The derivative financial asset of the Group as at 31 December 2013 represents
the profit guarantee (the “Profit Guarantee”) provided by the vendors to the
Company in respect of the acquisition of Viva China Sports Holding Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Viva China Sports Group”) in 2010,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EFLHREIZERE R R

R—F AR ZRITERARNER 2 B
173%5,007,000 7T ( —F — = £ : 19,200,000
S TC) 1B

RZEBE-—=F+_A=+—HZHMERS
BAEEN RFB8.0%t B RAKRERE
B-ZHHECRFATHEER -

R-E—NFE+-_A=+—H KEEBEF
EBRITEEX140,8350008 T ( ZE—=
4 196,000,000/ 7T ) + E 1 49135,828,00078
TC I R IEE A o

ROTLEMERZREAERE A FERE -

27. fTEMEIA

() PTEHMBEE

AEERR _ZT—=F+_A=+—HZTE
MEEEREIN _SE—ZFWEIIEALS
BEsIERERAFRENBAR (REA
[FEALEEEEE])BMARRRME 2 &HFR
F(TRFMRE]) ©
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The fair value of the Profit Guarantee was determined to be HK$61,000,000
by American Appraisal as at 31 December 2013, and a fair value gain on the
derivative financial asset of HK$62,543,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The actual profits of the Viva China Sports Group for the year ended 31 December
2013, which was derived from its ordinary course of business, did not meet

the Profit Guarantee for the corresponding year with a shortfall amounted to
HK$61,342,000. The vendors have compensated the Company for such shortfall
amount by cash and the amount was received in full during the year.

(b) Derivative financial liabilities

The contingent consideration arose from the possible issuance of Earn-Out
Perpetual Convertible Bonds in relation to the acquisition of approximately 25.2%
equity interest of Li Ning Co in December 2012, as further detailed in Note 31 to
the financial statements (“Contingent Consideration”).

The Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds were issued in advance in November
2013 based on the deed formed in August 2013. The derivative financial liability
in relation to the Contingent Consideration was derecognised and an equity
instrument was recognised upon the advanced issuance of Earn-Out Perpetual
Convertible Bonds, the financial impact of which is based on the fair value of Earn-
Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds upon the deed becoming effective. The Company
will continue to assess whether any and how much undertaken convertible bonds
might be cancelled in the future and recognise a corresponding derivative financial
asset, if any, at its fair value (note 31(b)). Subsequent changes of such fair value
of the derivative financial asset will be recognised in profit or loss. A fair value loss
of HK$156,000,000 was recognised upon the derecognition. Details of this were
set out in the Company’s circular dated 17 October 2013. As at 31 December
2014 and 2013, the fair value of the derivative financial assets determined to be
closed to zero.

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

EHFEEEN _T—=F+_A=+—8H
S AR EE Z A F{E A61,000,0008 7T © T HAEL
E-_E—=ZF+-A=Z+—RHLFE T&£
ﬁﬂkﬁﬁz N EF)E A62,543,0008 7T B
RIBEHEER ©

FABBEEBRREE T —=F+_F7
=t HIFEBEREBARETELELE
BRI mEAESEREFE 2 SFRE =8
7£561,342,0008 L - EHE AR B RIA QB HE
EEBEZm FEEERFRARE-

by PTERBERE

MR =F _$+ BUWBEZERRZH
25.2%%E 7 1 7] BE B2 1T B FIBE 7 K A M Al #2
%%#(ﬁ—i%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%im)

EELARE (THARE]D) -

BFGENKAMITRBESFNR =T —=
+—ARBR-_ZE—Z=ZFNAFIz2RE
IRATEETT - MR AT R T B FIBE Ik A M AT
REHEZ BXAREBEBA2ITEREARE
WL IEHER Mg TERER HU Ky
IR B LA R &R RE oK A MR
BBREHFZ AT EFTE AR B S EET S
RABEMAKREZ LB & EA] R E 5 7] 6
RARRTHERIZE QAL ERRIBETEY S
ﬁ?(@ﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁun°&m$%$§ﬁ
ZAFEZHEREESEN B ER
1FHE R B RE SR A B E518156,000, ooo,%n °
EAFBERARRBHAS *—E$+ﬁ
T+HtHZBHAN - R -_E—NFEN—
F+_A=1+—8B TEHBEENR ¥E

BEREKLT-

% EERIEBEEE

EETIRE E

Deferred tax assets

REA BRI RER 2 BLEHIHEET
TEZZDT
Group
rEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TAT
8,138 7,507
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The movement in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

Group
Notes
B =E
At 1 January 2013 —E—=F—H—H
Deferred tax credited to FRAREBERIEZ

profit or loss during the year IR E T IH 10
Currency translation differences PE 5 = RE
At 31 December 2013 and +:EE+—EI&

1 January 2014 —E—E—H—H
Reversal of withholding tax TR0 O 10
Currency translation differences bE 5 =R

—E—mF
At 31 December 20714 +=-—A=+—H

Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2014, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$328,035,000 (2013: HK$334,490,000), subject to the confirmation of
tax losses from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These tax losses are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$112,699,000 (2013:
HK$66,772,000) that will expire within five years to offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EfLAREI#ZERBRAF]

FRECHEAEEEZZEESHNT :

rE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of Withholding
subsidiaries taxes Total
g
MiE AR
MERZ
AFEFRE FENH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TATT FA&T
3,629 (801) 2,828
4,570 - 4,570
109 - 109
8,308 (801) 7,507
- 801 801
(170) - (170)
8,138 - 8,138
B E

@ R-Z-—MNE+-A=1+—H KXEERE
B A TR A B 18 #9328,035,000/8 7T ( ZE— =4 :
334,490,000/ 7T ) * HEBGFB BT BRI IEE
B - mzxERBEGEAERABEREGEER
A ZARERT A AEBIMAFBEEERE
E538112,699,000/% 7T ( — & — = 4F : 66,772,0005
JC) c RIREB AR R ERB A T E - EEBEER
AFERARB - ARZERAICHEBE —BREM
MERF R AT ARIEHERIEEREZ#E TR
W B ZEEEERELEHIBEEE-

by IRIBEFPBECEMEHE  RRBIK ZINE
WEDERINEILE E T IRIR B BIZ10%E U 78
M - WHBAEHE T NF—A—BREET I
BRER-_ZEZTLF+_A=T—HEZEF
B ESNE IR B E 2 RAE R A R B IS
Ho BT ERAREBHHRE -ASEmME @A
THE A5%10%  Fit - REEE EEFRA R B
YZHBRARIR - ZETN\F—A—BBRELZRA
KT R 2 I B B R ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

A=+—8H

29. A&
B 4

Notes
k3
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FREEL0E T
(‘Ordinary Shares’) TEk ([Emgl)
Redeemable convertible preferred FREEETLZ
shares of HK$0.01 each AR AR E LR
(‘Preferred Shares”) ([EER])
Total FeR
Issued and fully paid: BREARER:
Ordinary Shares LaEmR

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued capital during the years

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Issued Capital

Notes
k3
At 1 January 2013 “T-=5-H—-H
Issue of shares BITRD (a)
Share issue expenses BRHETHRX (a)
At 31 December 2013 “E-ZF
T-A=+-H
Conversion of perpetual convertible bonds B ¥k AR R ES ()
Issue of ordinary shares BITEREK (©)
At 31 December 2014 —E-|mF
+-A=+—-~H

Nominal value Nominal value

[k [EREL

No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
P& R TERT SR 45 TAEL
20,000,000,000 1,000,000  20,000,000,000 1,000,000
6,000,000,000 60,000 6,000,000,000 60,000
26,000,000,000 1,060,000  26,000,000,000 1,060,000
8,498,696,726 424,935 6,076,394,726 303,820

BE-T-NMFR-F =F+-A=1+—

BIEFEARARRSETRASESHMMT

BB TRA

Number of Share

Ordinary Issued premium
Shares in issue capital account Total
LAREA BRITRA R 12 5 (B BR #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET AT TAEL
5,596,394,726 279,820 2,864,804 3,144 624
480,000,000 24,000 216,000 240,000
- - (324) (324)
6,076,394,726 303,820 3,080,480 3,384,300
2,400,000,000 120,000 835,480 955,480
22,302,000 1,115 17,926 19,041
8,498,696,726 424,935 3,933,886 4,358,821
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Notes:

(a) On 21 February 2013, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
Atlantis Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (“Atlantis”), an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Company would issue to not less than six allottees at the
direction of Atlantis 480,000,000 Ordinary Shares at the cash subscription price of
HK$0.50 per share, which was completed on 8 March 2013. The closing price was
HK$0.40 per share on 21 February 2013, being the date on which the terms of the

issue were fixed. The net subscription price, after deduction of relevant expenses, was
approximately HK$0.499 per subscription share. The net proceeds of such issue amounted
to approximately HK$240,000,000 which will be applied towards general working capital
of the Group as well as business development and/or investment opportunities identified by
the Group from time to time. The related transaction costs amounting to HK$324,000 have
been netted off against the share premium.

(b) All Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Ordinary
Shares of the Company and was accounted for as a reclassification within equity. For details,
please refer to note 31(a).

(c) 22,302,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options
during the year.

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary, who, as
the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and members of the
senior management of the Company (the “Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or the
Committee (as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for
period of ten years commencing on 29 June 2010.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time

to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The
Company may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining
the approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total
number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.
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The Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 607,639,472 Ordinary Shares following
the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 4 November 2013.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Ordinary Shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 369,989,472 representing 4.35% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company. The maximum number of Ordinary Shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue
as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors or the Committee, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may
otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary
Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

At 1 January 2013 —E—=%—H—H
Granted during the year RERE D
Forfeited/expired during the year RE KR MBI H
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 —E—=4F
+ZA=+—8k
—E—NMFE—-H—H
Granted during the year RERE L
Forfeited/expired during the year RF AR U E HA
Exercised during the year RERNTTHE
At 31 December 2014 —E—ME
+-A=+—H

KRR -_ZE—=F+— AWBH#EEH
1% - 5T E4ZHE R A607,639,4720% & 3@ A% o

RAREBE  REt8BE T FEITZLE
fi% 48 81 £5369,989,4720% - HHE R A A BIIRE
BB ITARAN 2 4.35% o IR 1218 B 2R AR
BERENEITTAEETSSERREE
ZEBREE REZTEBRBARAREZ
REOBHBEBETEBR Z1% - EA#E— K
R PR RE v BB EZE RN R K e = KR
R -

REBEFERDBREZ 2HOATNEL B HIE
FrosH AR MARABRLZFE6 H
TBTZERBARE-CREBREZ1TE
HhEEeXZEeE T HEARARTE
BBaEL e tF - BFEZTERTH
ROHEVEREETENAFABRE
RAEHR -

BRiE2TFEFELRESSIZECET #
TERERTISEZZSAE  ((EBRAE
IEHEIR 2 HEAEBE R FT 2 T B & (i) T 3B A
REERHBHIAERS BEBRIZF
B HE: Rii)EEREE-

BREY BE THA ARBUR B SR BRA
SREZEM-

FAFEETHARITEBBRENT

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options

In#E 15
TEE RERRE 2L B
Notes (HK$ per share) '000
b (BB T
1.592 121,950
0.5 380,700
(b) 1.01 (33,090
0.75 469,560
0.8 237,650
(b) 0.79 (13,064)
(c) 0.73 (22,302)
(d) 0.77 671,844
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Notes:

(a) The fair values of the share options granted under the Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2014 were HK$32,023,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as
at the respective dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted, the valuation of which was performed by
American Appraisal. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 0
Expected volatility (%) 43 — 55
Expected life of options (years) 1-6
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.18 — 1.54
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.75

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past three
years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. No other
feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

Equity-settled share option expenses of HK$49,968,000 (2013: HK$30,060,000) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2014 in respect of the
share options granted under the Scheme.

(b) 13,064,000 (2013: 33,089,998) share options granted under the Scheme were
forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2014 upon the resignation of certain
grantees during the year.

(c) 22,302,000 share options granted under the Scheme were exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
(d)  Asat 31 December 2014, the Company had 671,844,002 share options

outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 7.9% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2014,

(e)  The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding under the
Scheme as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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2014
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE* THEHSE
('000) (HK$ per share)
(F14) (BRET)
6,133 3.9 2 Jul 2011 to 1 Jul 2016
6,133 3.9 2 Jul 2012 to 1 Jul 2017
6,134 3.9 2 Jul 2013 to 1 Jul 2018
2,200 4.15 6 Sep 2011 to 5 Sep 2016
2,200 4.15 6 Sep 2012 to 5 Sep 2017
2,200 4.15 6 Sep 2013 to 5 Sep 2018
2,200 4.15 6 Sep 2014 to 5 Sep 2019
1,200 4.15 6 Sep 2015 to 5 Sep 2020
21,140 0.75 20 Sep 2013 to 19 Sep 2015
8,166 0.75 20 Sep 2014 to 19 Sep 2016
6,300 0.75 20 Sep 2015 to 19 Sep 2017
81,388 0.5 2 Jul 2013 to 1 Jul 2016
96,000 0.5 2 Jul 2014 to 1 Jul 2017
97,000 0.5 2 Jul 2015 to 1 Jul 2018
97,000 0.5 2 Jul 2016 to 1 Jul 2019
200,000 0.8 20 Jun 2014 to 19 Jun 2015
6,300 0.8 20 Jun 2014 to 19 Jun 2017
10,050 0.8 20 Jun 2015 to 19 Jun 2018
10,050 0.8 20 Jun 2016 to 19 Jun 2019
10,050 0.8 20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
671,844
2013
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRES R TEE 1T
(000) (HKS per share)
(F) (BRAT)
6,133 3.9 2 Jul 2011 to 1 Jul 2016
6,133 3.9 2 Jul 2012 to 1 Jul 2017
6,134 3.9 2 Jul2013 to 1 Jul 2018
2,320 415 6 Sep 2011 t0 5 Sep 2016
2,320 415 6 Sep 2012 to 5 Sep 2017
2,320 415 6 Sep 2013 to 5 Sep 2018
2,200 415 6 Sep 2014 to 5 Sep 2019
1,200 415 6 Sep 2015 to 5 Sep 2020
23,867 0.75 20 Sep 2012 to 19 Sep 2014
23,867 0.75 20 Sep 2013 to 19 Sep 2015
9,066 0.75 20 Sep 2014 to 19 Sep 2016
7,200 0.75 20 Sep 2015 to 19 Sep 2017
84,300 0.5 2 Jul2013 to 1 Jul 2016
97,500 05 2 Jul 2014 to 1 Jul 2017
97,500 05 2 Jul 2015 to 1 Jul 2018
97,500 0.5 2 Jul 2016 to 1 Jul 2019
469,560

*

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share

capital of the Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect

of a transaction)
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At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding share options
under the Scheme would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in

the issue of 671,844,002 additional Ordinary Shares and additional share capital of
HK$33,592,000 and share premium of HK$481,226,000, before taking into account any
transfer of share option reserve to the share premium account.

31. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The perpetual convertible bonds issued during the years are as follows:

RNBEBR BBERAFRE 2 EARNEE 2
HRMAITEBREEE2HITER  BREINET
671,844,0028% & 38 A% - %15 58 S A% ZX33,592,0007%
7T B IR 17 54 1B 481,226,0005% 7T (N &t K A 0] B PR
EEBEREERDEER)

31. KA RKES
FRBEITZKAMARBESAT :

Group and Company

—¥1%A
— &g S

— Initial
— Earn-out

Balance at 31 December

R+t-—A=+—Hz&

(@) Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds

In December 2012, the Company issued Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds with
a principal amount of HK$780,000,000 for the acquisition of approximately
25.2% equity interest in Li Ning Co, as further detailed in note 19 to the financial
statements, which are convertible at the option of the bondholders into Ordinary
Shares anytime at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per share. The Initial Perpetual
Convertible Bonds are non-redeemable, non-interest bearing and have no
maturity period, save that they will become due and payable upon the liquidation
of the Company. The distribution on the Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds will
be equal to the distribution or dividend that would otherwise have been paid on
the conversion shares into which the convertible bonds are convertible had the
relevant right of conversion been exercised prior to the record date applicable
to the distribution or dividend declaration, and shall be paid at the same time

as the Company pays the relevant distribution or dividends to its shareholders.
As the Company has no contractual obligations to repay its principal nor to

pay any distributions, nor deliver a variable number of its Ordinary Shares to

the bondholders, the Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds are accounted for as
equity instruments and are included in the shareholders’ equity, and respective
distributions if and when declared are treated as equity dividends. The related
transaction costs amounting to HK$62,000 have been netted off against the
carrying amount.
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AEBRARATF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E FExT FHTT
(@) - 955,480
(b) 1,139,046 1,139,046
1,139,046 2,094,526

(a) WHERKAMTRRES
MN-_T——F+_A ARARKBEZTER
A2 #925.2% P HEEE 1T RN & £ B8 &780,000,000
BILZ B KA R ES  FIBE—F
BRI RERM 19 SR B ES
A ZESFEE ANEENESRRM0.325E
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On 6 June 2014, all Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds were converted into
2,400,000,000 Ordinary Shares of the Company and was accounted for as a
reclassification within equity.

(b) Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind Assets
and Dragon City to advance the timetable for the possible issuance of Earn-Out
Perpetual Convertible Bonds in relation to the acquisition of approximately 25.2%
equity interest of Li Ning Co in December 2012 (note 19). The execution and
performance of the Deed were approved in the extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders on 4 November 2013. The Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds
with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000 were issued in advance in November
2013 and were classified as equity and the related derivative financial liabilities
were derecognised at the same time, the financial impact of which was based on
the fair value of Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds upon the Deed becoming
effective. As a result, the Group has recorded a loss of HK$156,000,000 in
2013. Upon the completion of the advanced issuance, the holder of the perpetual
convertible bonds are subject to certain undertakings, under which a portion of
perpetual convertible bonds may have to be returned to the Company in the event
that certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Company will
continue to assess whether any and how much undertaken perpetual convertible
bonds might be cancelled in the future and recognise a corresponding derivative
financial asset, if any, at its fair value. Subsequent changes of fair value of

such derivative financial asset will be recognised in profit or loss. Details of this
transaction were set out in the Company’s circular dated 17 October 2013, The
related transaction costs amounting to approximately HK$954,000 have been
offset against the carrying amount of Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds in
2013.

There was no movement on Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds during the year
ended 31 December 2014,

RNZZT—WENANE A PDBKAMR
PR & 5 J& 3, 3% A2,400,000,0000% 7K A &)
B BARABEFOBERAK-

(b) BREELXKAETBRRES
R-ZZ—=F/\A=+H" &2Ra &Victory
Mind Assets 5 Dragon Citys] 32 22 15 + LA #E Bl Bt R
—E——F+ - ANEZFE QR 4925.2%K
R A RE B 1T AFIBE oK A M A MR ESH A
Rk (5E19) - RBECEURBITR -
—=F+—AEBARTHRERFIAE LE
TES B - A F1E A1,140,000,00078 T 2 &
FEE N KAMABMBRESER T —=F
+— ARATET WHEEAER  FE - B
PTENGEEDRIEER EUBZEDR
BREZBEE SRR DA BRRE
HFZATEFAE Al - ASER_T—=
& $% 15 E518156,000,00078 JT - R TB L 31T
BB - K AR RRES B AR S T%
HBETHR - BIL WEEEE A TRIEAE
EREERK - B D KA M RARES ] 8
BAREBTANA AR RBEETEEDE
E10] &2 % D B AGE K A M AT R AR & 55 A RE R
RERFHEHRIBFEE AN ERREEITEVEE
E(WE) BEENMEMEKEEZATEZ
BEREEHEREaTER BREXI ZFE
ERAQRBHA T =F+A+tB2
BEHRA-RZZE—=F HEARXFHAEL
954,000/ 7T E S B FIBE 1 K A M AT R (F
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32. RESERVES

(@) Group

(i) The amounts of the Group’ s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been fransferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

32. B

(@ A&KH

) AFEERE—FEASEHBESER
Hh BN G RSEHRANR-

(i) BERERKERECHEBERITERBRE
ZRVE  E—FFBERMBHKRME23
PRt AR D 1 2 & FTEUR - BB & BN
BRABBERETERESRESRMEER X
RAERBREARS R RS ERERE &
M,/ BEHEE -

iy BEZEBBELEZBBEEENER
REBRP R 2 2B M B A R7E D %A
BEEAZBRHRAS® 2 EHEES-

(b) Company (b) &2 F]
Share Share Unlisted
premium option Warrants Accumulated
account reserve Reserve losses Total
FL
BRARER BRERE ARERRE 2HER @it
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz T THT T T T
Balance at 1 January 2013 WZE-=F—-F—RAz&H% 2,864,804 52,503 - (713,882) 2,203,425
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss for the year EREBRERZ A RAR - = = (503,090) (503,090)
Issues of shares E1lRh 29 216,000 = - - 216,000
Share issues expenses RipBIREY 29 (324) - - - (324)
Equity-setlled share option arrangements IRELEE 7 BIRER S 30() = 30,060 - - 30,060
Transfer of share option reserve upon forfeiture of share ~ F R BB AR BB B BE IR G
options = (3,403) = 3,403 =
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZE-Z6+-A=1+-HK
RZZE-WE-A—A 3,080,480 79,160 - (1,213,569) 1,946,071
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss for the year  FABERERNZABBLE - - - (586,135) (586,135)
Conversion of perpetual convertle bonds SR BRES 835,480 - - - 835,480
Issug of unlisted warrants BOELEmARES 3 - - 5,993 - 5,993
Exercise of share option TEERE 30(0) 17,926 (2,844 - - 15,082
Equity-settled share option arrangements INREEE 2 BEiRiER 30(a) - 49,968 - - 49,968
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or expiry 7 B8 ARIE B8 M 3 /& i 5
of share options ERERERE - (1,716) - 1,716 -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=-B=+-H 3,933,886 124,568 5,993 (1,797,988) 2,266,459

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company is available for distributions or payment of dividends to
shareholders of the Company subject to the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Non-cash transactions

In June 2014, all Initial Perpetual Convertible Bonds were converted into
2,400,000,000 Ordinary Shares of the Company (note 31(a)).

In December 2014, 33,000,000 units of convertible securities of Li Ning Co held
by the Group were converted into LN Shares.

In November 2013, the Group has completed the advanced issuance of Earn-Out
Perpetual Convertible Bonds (note 31(b)).

34. UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a warrant placing agreement (the
“Warrant Placing Agreement”) with RHB OSK Securities Hong Kong Limited (the
“Placing Agent”), an independent third party. Pursuant to the Warrant Placing
Agreement, the Placing Agent agreed to place up to 700,000,000 warrants at

a consideration of HK$0.01 each, the warrants conferring rights to subscribe

for up to 700,000,000 Ordinary Shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.55 per share (subject to adjustment) to the warrant placees who and their
respective ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties. The warrants
have an exercise period of 18 months. The warrant placing has been completed
on 11 June 2014 and 700,000,000 warrants have been issued to six placees
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Warrant Placing Agreement.
An aggregated net proceeds of approximately HK$5,993,000 has been raised by
the warrant placing and the same will be utilised by the Group as general working
capital.

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

(a) As lessor

As at 31 December 2014, the Group leased the completed portion of its
investment properties (note 15) to the independent third parties under operating
lease arrangements, with each lease negotiated for a term of 5 to 6 years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
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HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FE T

Within one year —FR 1,484 803
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FIEELFT (BRERMTE) 6,454 3,615
7,938 4,418

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any significant
operating lease commitments as a lessor.
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(b) As lessee (b) EBEBEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease AEERBELCEHNLHEEERETHAE
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from six ME-YERRCHEZENT NEAERE
months 1o two years. ZfEe
At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company had total future minimum RZFE—MNFEF+A=+—H8 AKE KX
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: NEIMRER T 5 BABR & w2 T Pl i sE 48 &
AMRBREN zZEHSEBOT
Group Company
x5H b /NG|
2014 2014
—E-lNf —g-= —E-lWE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET TER THT
Within one year —ER 5,971 6,127 2,093 5,641
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF
(AREEERE) 1,575 2,093 - 2,093
7,546 8,220 2,093 7,734
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BARKIE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following capital commitments: RZE—WF+_A=+—H A~EBHESE
AT E AR :

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAB R B -
Construction work EETRE 3,175 =
3,175 -
Note: B aE
As 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any significant capital R NEER-_T—=F+-"HA=+—H 'K
commitments. N EE A ERE RN RS-
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

Sponsorship income received and receivable from
an associate

@Gross underwriting commission fee received from
an associate

Service income received from an associate

P U e e U — B &

Az BB A

il —HBERRIZE

HATERAR

T U — R B = R m) 2 R

WA

Office and car-park rental expense paid and ENEEMN—EEER
payable to an associate RIZHAREREFEEE
HERX
(i) Sponsorship income in relation to some sports event and competition managed by

the Group received and receivable from LN Group, which was charged in accordance with
the terms negotiated between the related parties. Mr. Li Ning is a common director of the

Company and LN Group.

(ii) Gross underwriting commission fee of HK$18,617,000 in 2013 represented 2.5%
of the principal amount of convertible securities underwritten by the Group under the 2013
Li Ning Open Offer. It is determined after arm’s length negotiations between the Group and
LN Group with reference to current prevailing market rate. Mr. Li Ning is a common director
of the Company and Li Ning Co. The underwriting commission fee, after elimination of the
attributable portion of the unrealised transaction with LN Group and net of related expenses,
amounted to HK$12,960,000 was recorded as other revenue (note 5).

(iiy  Service income represented an agency fee for service rendered in relation to the
endorsement of brand products of LN Group. It was charged in accordance with the terms

negotiated between the Group and LN Group. Mr. Li Ning is

a common director of the

Company and LN Group. Pursuant to the relevant agency contract entered with the sports
talent appointed by LN Group for the provision of the aforesaid endorsement, the service

income recognised by the Group was calculated based on certain percentage of the gross
sponsorship fee on a time apportionment basis in accordance with the service agreement
entered into with LN Group, over the relevant service period.

(iv)  During the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Group leased an office
and certain car-parking spaces from LN Group. The lease rates were determined after arm's
length negotiations between the Group and LN Group with reference to current prevailing
market rate. Mr. Li Ning is a common director of the Company and LN Group.
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(b)  Other Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group exercised its rights for
subscription and excess application for the convertible securities of Li Ning Co in
the principal amount of HK$3.50 per unit of convertible securities. Approximately
146,759,000 units of convertible securities were allotted to the Group at the
total consideration of approximately HK$513,656,000. In this connection, the
Group’s equity interests in Li Ning Co has increased from approximately 25.2%
to approximately 26.1% with effect from April 2013, assuming all holders of the
convertible securities convert the convertible securities in full upon completion of
the 2013 Li Ning Open Offer. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Group exercised its rights to convert 33,000,000 units of convertible securities
into 33,000,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co.

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as included in trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables are disclosed in
notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

The related party transactions during the year under review as set out in this
note did not fall within the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group's exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the Group
employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. As the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk are kept at a minimum level, the Group has
not used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are discussed below.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets in relation to cash at banks carried at effective interest
rates with reference to the market, details of which are disclosed in note 23

to the financial statements. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has not
used any financial instrument to hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates. The
exposure to interest rates for the Group’s cash at banks is considered minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument (excluding investment in an associate) will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Most of the sales and trading transactions are settled in RMB. Deposits
invested into various bank deposits are denominated in RMB and HK$. As at the
end of the reporting period, foreign currencies were translated into HK$ at the
closing rate. As at 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances denominated

in RMB and domiciled outside the PRC amounted to HK$371,375,000 (2013:
HK$460,105,000) and the remaining balance of HK$207,059,000 (2013:
HK$367,425,000) was mainly denominated in HK$ or denominated in RMB and
domiciled in the PRC. The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to
foreign currency risk at year end date.

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results, and equity of the
Group would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$18,569,000 (2013:
HK$23,005,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
amounts due from subsidiaries and cash and cash equivalents included in the face
of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s or the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with

its customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to four months to its major trade
customers. The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of its trade receivables. The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRG, therefore the directors consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal. The credit and investment policies have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals, bank and other loan
and an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by
carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day to day and week
to week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 3 months projection. Long
term liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared to available funds in order to
determine headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available funds are
expected to be sufficient over the lookout period. The Group maintains cash

and short-term bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30 days at a
minimum. Funding for longer-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of borrowings and the ability to sell longer-term financial assets.
The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade
customers.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is within one year or on
demand.
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The contractual undiscounted payments are approximate to their carrying
amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.

Fair value risk and disclosures

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held certain derivative financial instruments
which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further detailed in
note 27 to the financial statements. In respect of the derivative financial asset,

its fair value was measured based on a valuation technique for which any inputs
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data (the “Level 3 measurement”). In respect of the derivative
financial liabilities, their fair values were measured based on a valuation technique
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly (the “Level 2 measurement”). During the
year ended 31 December 2014, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair
value measurements (2013: Nil).

In respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014
and 2013 which are carried in the financial statements at other than fair value,

in the opinion of the directors of the company, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of their respective fair
values as these financial instruments are due to be received or settled within one
year. Accordingly, no disclosure of the fair values of these financial instruments is
made.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2018.

BRRMERREHEREEMES

AEBRFEREERDE T RREEER
BYBREECRBMRERE BFrRRAEE
BREAHRELERS 2 EMRBDERE N &
ERERSERMEMRBEENER L HE
RembER

A ERBEREE

MU B RRMF7E—SFSF R -
—mE+-—A=+—HB AEBEEETHLE
B TERAFEFTATERR - STEMK
BEZAFENREMEHEARAFER
BAFE MU IEREBRAI B TS EIE
BEEG ABBRZAERKITAE ([FE38%ET
2]) TEMBABZAFEIRIEME Y
EABRAFTEAEAFE NI EESXHES
RO B ABBZAERITAE ([F285
2) HE_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HLHF
B BIRATFEFAEREEASEL (=ZF
—ZFE)o

RAEER _ZE—NFER-_ZE—=F+_H
=+ —BWIEURAFEFATEHRE 205
BENBEMS ARREZRAE ZEY
BKEERABZEAMEEAEMBOTES
BEZBZATE RRAZEMETES
R—FREREE - Al SIEFEZS
M TAZAFEE-

EXREE
AEECEAEREZANDRERAEESF
SERE RN RERRBEARLE U
FEXBERYBERTKRREE-

AEEBEGNERRMREIELEARRE
NHEREBLERNRBRERE K  FEEE
AAREZAREATE BRI RBAAEXR
P - TRRTREE R E M S RAEBEAM -

RN FARERERE NEEAEAEMR
BRI 2 I8 B~ M IR B IR B & AN gk B2 1T 3T
B - AEBIWEIEREMIINAERR
F-BE_ZT-—NEER-_ZT—=ZF+_A
=t+t—BLtFE BEHEEEEAZEREZ K
RAEFHEZE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

141



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »
B 5 R AR MY AT >

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+=-HA=+—H

The Group regards total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position

as capital, for capital management purposes. The amount of capital (total

equity plus total debt) as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$3,878,036,000 (2013: HK$4,338,187,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
forecast strategic investment opportunities.

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified as financial asset/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements, all financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2014 and 2013 were loans and receivables, and financial liabilities
stated at amortised cost, respectively.

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 December 2014, VCHL entered into the underwriting agreement with

Li Ning Co ("VCHL Underwriting Agreement”), pursuant to which VCHL had
conditionally committed to underwrite up to a maximum of 183,192,543

offer securities (representing a maximum subscription price of approximately
HK$476,300,612), minus any offer securities acquired by VCHL under successful
excess application in the open offer (“Li Ning Open Offer”), as determined
pursuant to the VCHL Underwriting Agreement. All proposed subscriptions by
VCHL in the Li Ning Open Offer were in the form of convertible securities, with the
initial conversion price of HK$2.60 per new LN Share issuable upon conversion
(subject to adjustments).The Group has entered into an irrevocable undertaking

to subscribe for its full assured entitlement of offer securities in the Li Ning Open
Offer, in the form of convertible securities, for a maximum illustrative amount of
approximately HK$447,560,685.

The Li Ning Open Offer was completed in January 2015. Approximately
124,739,000 units of convertible securities were allotted to the Group with total
consideration of approximately HK$324,322,000. In this connection, the Group’s
equity interests in Li Ning Co has been diluted from 26.1% to approximately 25%
with effect from January 2015. The Group received a gross underwriting fee
amounted to approximately HK$11,908,000 in respect of acting as one of the
underwriters in the Li Ning Open Offer.

41. DIVIDENDS
The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did not recommend the

payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES »
REMEZHF»

31 December 2014 —ZE—WFE+=-_A=+—H

Location Use Tenure
& A% HH

Land Lot Nos. 50, 52, 61, For generating rental income ~ Medium term
No. 22 Kaifa Road, and/or capital appreciation

Shenyang Economic and
Technology Development Zone,
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the PRC

T E ARBBRESKAR, HH
BEA HENEE

&

7R 5 A B 1l B [

B 2% R 2255

550 ~ 52 ~ 615R H R,

Attributable Interest

of the Group
AEEEGRES
100% directly

HEEA100%
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY »
LFEMBEHREY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the UTNEAEBBERBAVREE HEZ %

Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the published BENEERBEME=LERE DRt E
audited financial statements of the Group, is set out below: AEBEDHBELEZWBRE:
RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t+-BLEE

2014
—E-Nf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TAET AT AT THT
REVENUE gy 111,418 125,162 68,191 80,130 11,419
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BBALEF, (BE) (463,045) (645,763) (296,089) 40,511 (64,105)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO 7R A RI4E 28 Ak RIS
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FREF,/ (E8) (462,176) (640,919) (282,595) 39,452 (62,957)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE
31 December
+=A=t+-H
2014
—E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET AT AT AT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 2,990,300 3,338,903 3,219,325 1,060,901 525,441
CURRENT ASSETS HEEE 1,022,887 1,121,657 1,458,017 1,153,361 1,521,540
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE 140,158 135,302 230,908 114,473 26,192
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 882,729 986,355 1,227,109 1,038,888 1,495,348
TOTAL ASSETS BE®E 4,013,187 4,460,560 4,677,342 2,214,262 2,046,981
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEBERRDEE 3,873,029 4,325,258 4,446,434 2,099,789 2,020,789
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY APrAERREE GRS
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 3,873,034 4,322,802 3,455,299 2,079,865 1,997,508
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GLOSSARY »
LTS

In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

2013 LN Open Offer”

[T =FFEHAEE]

“‘American Appraisal’

[ < BIR¥(E

“Board”

[E=g]

BVI”
[REBRZES]

)

“close associate(s)
[BEREE A

“Company” or “Viva China”

RANCIR A L=

"

‘connected transaction(s)
[BAER 5 ]

“Directors”

[E=%]

“Dragon City”
[ Dragon City |

“Four-Level School Basketball Leagues”

[7m AR A [ TR B

‘GEM”
BIEX/W

EAERN B XESEEAEN T
&ARTXFABGIZ A%

the open offer of convertible securities by Li Ning Co in the principal amount of HK$3.50 for
every two existing LN Shares held by the qualifying shareholders of Li Ning Co
FERNAETEREMRREFTERNVZFERRZAERKRREZER
SREALSOBITZAIRRISF 2 ARESE

American Appraisal China Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer

XBEFHEBRAR BYEXEERMGER

the board of Directors

E=xg

the British Virgin Islands
EEBRLHS

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules

BB RIER EARRATE T AR R =

Viva China Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8032)
FENFEZERERAR RASHETMRIZ2BERAGR  HEBITRM
REIFER B (B A58 - 8032)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the GEM Listing Rules

BB AIER AR T =

the directors of the Company

RABES

Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited, a company incorporated in BVI
Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited * & — B R RBEZHSFEMK LA R A

Chinese University Basketball Association (CUBA), Chinese University Basketball Super
League (CUBS), Chinese High School Basketball League (CHBL) and Chinese Junior School
Basketball League (CJBL)

R KEEETRIEECUBA) - R Bl KB A EIGEREECUBS) RIS H &
Bf Bt 2 (CHBL) M A B #7) Hp €5 B B6k 22 (CUBL)

the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
Bt 22 P Bl ZE R
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GLOSSARY »
>

“GEM Listing Rules”
[BIZ R AR Al

“Group”
[RE&EE ]

"HK$"
[l

“HKICPA”
[AAEMASE

E

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

*HKFRSS
[ BB HE 2R

“Lead Ahead”
[Lead Ahead |

“Li Ning Co”

-2l

“Li Ning Open Offer”
(FERARABEE]
‘LN Group”
[FEEE]

‘LN Offer Securities”

[FEREES]

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
BIXRES EHHRA

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZAN/NTD B4 pE=RN]

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong

B BBAEER

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Nk VN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFBFRITHE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations

FEMBREEYN (BRREMEBTEVHRELR FE G £R LRE)

Lead Ahead Limited, a company incorporated in the BV
Lead Ahead Limited - MR B E XA S MK 2 A A

Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2331)

TEAERAA AHASHESEMKLIZEBRARF  EEEHITFEROR

AT ER T (B R5R - 2331)

the open offer of LN Offer Securities for subscription, on the basis of 5 LN Offer Securities for
every 12 existing LN Shares held by the quanying shareholders of Li Ning Co
PAZREFTERETFUERE EEREREI2RREFTERN 2FE
NEIZEEBRREEN FTE %’é%m}%

Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries
2 AR RENBAA

the new LN Shares, credited as fully paid, to be offered to the qualifying shareholders of Li
Ning Co and/or the LN Convertible Securities to be offered to the qualifying shareholders of Li
Ning Co under the Li Ning Open Offer in lieu of all or part of their entitement to such new LN
Shares, or a combination of both, at the election of the qualifying shareholders of Li Ning Co
under the Li Ning Open Offer
BEFENHAEEREETFTERAGERRRARIMEMZNIFTE
foﬁ&/d@iﬂlﬁé%%$*“ A EERRRNFTEAMRES  URFE
REIZEBERBRENERERRBERNFTELNRAEEE T ERTHNEY
DT ERMEFENFRERET R
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LTS

“LN Share(s)"
[ =R ]

“LN Convertible Securities”

[ 2= B8 A] # f E 55

"PRC”
[FE]
“RMB’
AR

‘SFO”
[& 75 RS )]

“Share(s)”

[ A& 17 ]
“Shareholder(s)”
&S

“State Council”

[ Bl 75 B |

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 P

“Subscription Price”

[REBE]

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
ERARA R FIRE E0.10% 7T 2 R

the convertible securities offered by Li Ning Co to the qualifying shareholders of Li Ning Co,
in lieu of all or part of LN Shares at the election of each qualifying shareholder of Li Ning Co,
in the Li Ning Open Offer and are convertible into LN Shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$2.60 per LN Shares (subject to adjustment)
FERNAAZTERAREGEBRBRREEZAIRRKRES UWRFEQAREEE
BRRAOEENRTEAREETN 2 BIBLTERG  ZF T REKF
FARIpEnETRIFERMK2.608 T (Al THE) BRAZTERD

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
PEARANE SAFHME  TREES FEAREME R KR
TRERAE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE RBAEEHR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
ERIEDIFENEEF LIS RH

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company
NN B IR F AR EE0.0578 7T 2 & AR

holder(s) of Share(s)
EGESEEDN

State Council of the People’s Republic of China
RE AR b

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERXHMBERRAT

the subscription price of HK$2.60 per LN Offer Securities
BRFTEBREEFNRBE260E T
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>

“Underwriting Agreement”
[ B 85 17 7%

“VCHL"

['VCHL |

“VCHL Underwriting Agreement”

[VCHL B2 38 1 7
“Victory Mind Assets”
['Victory Mind Assets

oy
[%

the underwriting agreement dated 23 January 2013 entered into between the Company and
Li Ning Co in relation to the 2013 LN Open Offer
ARARFEQRAR T =FFEQAREER T —=F—A=+=
BEl Mz BiH =

Viva China Holdings Ltd, a company incorporated in BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Viva China Holdings Ltd * R R BREZHSHEMK Lz RF W AEEXR A 22 E
BB A A

the underwriting agreement entered into between VCHL and Li Ning Co on 16 December
2014 in relation to the Li Ning Open Offer
VCHEREFERRMFEARBER T —NE+ AT B2 BHE W

==
A

Victory Mind Assets Limited, a company incorporated in BVI
Victory Mind Assets Limited * PR B iR L BE B E AKX 2 A A

per cent.
Elsed
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Room 3602-06, 36th Floor, China Merchants Tower

VIVA CHINA Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 TR BH 2005512 OB R AE36123602-06 =
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